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Styling Life

To sociologists, historians, political leaders 
and many marketers, life is a mass experience. 
But to us as everyday human beings, life is
exceedingly individual.

Many of us have a strong need to express 
this individuality. To confirm our own self-image. 
To communicate who we are, especially to 
others who share our interests and values.

This individual self-expression is called style. 
And when it defines both who we are and how 
we live, that’s Styling Life.

In thousands, except per share amounts

Summary of Operations
Net sales
Operating income
Operating margin
Income from continuing operations
Net income (loss)*
Return on capital (continuing operations)

Financial Position
Working capital
Current ratio
Cash flow from operations
Debt to capital ratio
Common stockholders’ equity

Per Common Share
Income from continuing operations – diluted
Net income (loss) – diluted*
Dividends
Book value

2003 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2002 

$ 5,083,523
621,924

12.2%
$ 364,428

(154,543)
16.9%

$ 1,199,696
2.4 to 1

$ 645,584
28.6%

$ 1,657,848

$ 3.24
(1.38)

.97
15.28

2001 

$ 5,220,417
454,427

8.7%
$ 217,278

137,830
8.0%

$ 1,217,587
2.5 to 1

$ 600,556
31.7%

$ 2,112,796

$ 1.89
1.19

.93
19.21

* Net income (loss) and related per share amounts include operating results of discontinued operations in 2002 and 2001 and the 
cumulative effect of a change in accounting policy in 2002. See details in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

2003

$ 5,207,459
644,889

12.4%
$ 397,933

397,933
16.6%

$ 1,336,674
2.5 to 1

$ 543,704
33.7%

$ 1,951,307

$ 3.61
3.61
1.01

18.04
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Lifestyle

Lifestyle describes the way people live based 
on what they value. At VF, we cut through the
crowd to understand individuals by means of 
their lifestyles.

We do not invent style. Rather, we discover 
the style that exists in life and design our apparel
to express that spirit — personally and powerfully.
This understanding allows us to create products
whose appeal is both universal and true to 
the individual.

This year’s annual report shows the latest 
ways that we are styling life to energize our 
consumers’ lifestyles.

(CLOCKWISE FROM TOP LEFT) TOMMY HILFIGER INTIMATES*, EARL JEAN, BULWARK, THE NORTH FACE, WRANGLER

*licensed brand
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(CLOCKWISE FROM TOP LEFT) LILY OF FRANCE, LEE, CURVATION, NAUTICA HOME FURNISHINGS

From the outside: Individuality, zero. Character? Zip. Zilch. Nada. Inside: Personality brews along with strong coffee, cool chairs and super comfy sheets.
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Lee Jeans

(CLOCKWISE FROM LEFT) NAUTICA BLUE, NAUTICA, JANSPORT

The path to contentment is not in the sky. Or in the sea. Or even in your heart . . . It’s knowing that, at some point in your life, you looked really good with a tan. 
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(BOTTOM LEFT TO RIGHT) RED KAP, LEE ONE TRUE FIT, LEE DUNGAREES

280 horsepower
5-speed
Beautiful leather and wood interior
Chrome rims
Candy Apple Red

A Porsche is a Porsche is a Porsche —
until it’s sitting in your garage

Then it’s a chick magnet.
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(CLOCKWISE FROM TOP LEFT) EARL JEAN, EASTPAK (EUROPE), LEE (EUROPE)

No parents. No curfew. No qualms. When freedom is outlawed, only outlaws will be free.
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(CLOCKWISE FROM LEFT) JANSPORT, BESTFORM, THE NORTH FACE

Hearts racing. Thirty thousand strong with a common goal. A year of training in the silent woods, her hopes and dreams crammed into her backpack.
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WRANGLER HERO

The workweek is about fluorescent lights,
starched shirts and takeout. 
Weekends are just for fishing, fetch and Fido.
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(LEFT TO RIGHT) 20X, WRANGLER

A million travelers crisscross the highway in infinite directions every day. Some hit the road to get where they’re going. For others, the road is the destination.
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(TOP TO BOTTOM) THE NORTH FACE, NAUTICA

Today: 2400 feet of dry, hissing powder. Blue skies. An abundance of rough terrain. Tomorrow: Delirium. Soreness. Pain. Thank goodness for the sauna.
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65,755 fans
128 football players
90 hot dog vendors
73 ushers
28 janitors
12 line judges and referees

1 guy shaking in his jeans about to propose 
on the Jumbotron.

(BOTTOM LEFT TO RIGHT) HORACE SMALL, LEE DUNGAREES, RIDERS
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Thumbing through the latest best seller, finding the perfect lotion, keeping cool . . . Doing nothing requires the same dedication and discipline as staying in shape. 

(CLOCKWISE FROM TOP LEFT) LEE, NAUTICA, LEE
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(CLOCKWISE FROM TOP LEFT) GEMMA, WRANGLER (EUROPE), LEE (EUROPE)

There will come a day when I’ll be a responsible adult with 2.5 kids and a mortgage. But until then, searching for the perfect cappuccino with free biscotti is enough for me.
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Styling Life works for us only because we serve
individual lifestyles so well. This is why VF’s
brands have such wide reach and global appeal.
And it is why Styling Life will continue to
strengthen our position as the world’s largest
apparel company.

(RIGHT) HERO BY WRANGLER
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(CLOCKWISE FROM LEFT) WRANGLER HERO, 20X, WRANGLER RUGGED WEAR

North and South America Jeanswear

In 2003 we continued to strengthen our position
as the world’s leading jeans company. Our success
can be attributed to our strategy of managing a
portfolio of brands carefully designed to meet the
specific lifestyles of our target consumers. 

EXTENDING THE BRAND

The Lee® brand’s big success story in 2003 was
the launch of its Lee® One True Fit™ line for young, 
contemporary women shopping in national chains
and department stores. The line combines a
specially designed contoured fit with a range of
fashionable styles at a great value. For men, our
Lee® Dungarees line continues to outperform the
competition at retail. New fabrics and finishes,
including tints and hand-sanding, are giving male
consumers ages 17 to 24 a new reason to buy
Lee® Dungarees.

Knowing consumers is at the core of what 
we do best. Following extensive research, we’ve
developed the new Buddy Lee Registered™ line,
that will offer younger male consumers a range 
of denim and twill products differentiated in terms
of fits, fabrics, details and packaging. And each
product will be “customized”, with a unique nine-
digit registration number as the back pocket patch.
Another key initiative is developing our juniors
business, and our new Lee® 1889 line is designed
to appeal to female teens seeking authenticity 
and fashion.

Lee® Authentics, a line offering sophisticated
vintage fits and finishes at high-end specialty
boutiques, was also launched in 2003 and is
slated for further growth in 2004. 

MASS APPEAL 

No one knows the mass market apparel consumer
better than VF, and despite intensified competition
in 2003 that impacted overall sales, our Wrangler

Hero® and Riders® brands held their own — and
then some. In fact, our Wrangler® Five Star Premium
Denim line continues to gain momentum and
increase sales. And our Riders® brand has increased
its share of the female market through new stretch,
mid-rise and casual products.

We’re particularly excited about the launch 
of our new Wrangler Jeans Co.™ line, targeted to
18 to 32 year old men. The line includes jeans,
pants, shirts, daypacks, shoes and accessories
and features top NASCAR driver Dale Earnhardt
Jr. as spokesman. Our Riders® brand, too, is
focusing more heavily on the needs of younger,
fashion conscious women with its new Copper

Collection™ line.

DEFINING CONSUMER LIFESTYLES

The Wrangler® brand continues to epitomize the
true Western lifestyle. In 2003 the PBR Jean was
launched with the endorsement of the Professional
Bull Riders Association, tapping into the sport’s
growing popularity. In a new twist, the brand recently
teamed up with New York City designer Wendy
Mullin to launch a line for upscale boutiques that
will emphasize the brand’s American heritage 
and authenticity.

The Riggs Workwear by Wrangler™ line was
successfully launched in 2003 and is hitting the
mark with hardworking men. Sold almost exclu-
sively at Western and workwear specialty stores,
initial feedback has been very positive.

Our Lee®, Wrangler®, Wrangler Hero®, Riders®

and Gitano® brands are also marketed throughout
Mexico, Latin America, and Canada.

LEE

WRANGLER

WRANGLER HERO

RIDERS

RUSTLER

TIMBER CREEK 
BY WRANGLER

WRANGLER 
RUGGED WEAR

RIGGS WORKWEAR 
BY WRANGLER

PRO GEAR BY WRANGLER

CHIC

GITANO

20X

UFO*

BRITTANIA

CHANNELS OF DISTRIBUTION

National Chains and
Department Stores

LEE

Mass Market

WRANGLER HERO

RIDERS

RUSTLER

TIMBER CREEK 
BY WRANGLER

BRITTANIA

CHIC

GITANO

Specialty Stores

WRANGLER

WRANGLER RUGGED WEAR

20X

RIGGS WORKWEAR 
BY WRANGLER

PRO GEAR BY WRANGLER

United States 

National Chains and
Department Stores

LEE

WRANGLER

Mass Market

RIDERS

RUSTLER

TIMBER CREEK 
BY WRANGLER

Specialty Stores

LEE

WRANGLER

UFO*

Mexico

Latin America

Canada

*licensed brand
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(CLOCKWISE FROM LEFT) LOU, VANITY FAIR, VASSARETTE

Global Intimate Apparel

Our Global Intimates coalition exemplifies VF’s
portfolio approach: with our Vanity Fair®, Lily of

France®, Vassarette®, Bestform®, Curvation® and
licensed Tommy Hilfiger® brands, we’re able to
offer U.S. consumers the right styles and value
wherever they choose to shop. We take the same
approach in Europe, with our Intima Cherry®,
Gemma®, Belcor®, Lou® and Variance® brands.

BRAND STRENGTH IN MASS STORES

2003 marked the successful launch of the
Curvation® brand, created to address the needs 
of real women with real curves. Award winning
musician, actress and author Queen Latifah is 
our spokesperson for the line, participating in 
promotions and advertising opportunities around
the country. We are extending the brand into new 
categories in 2004, including sports bras and
strapless products, and are excited about the
brand’s future growth potential. 

Our Vassarette® brand, which has faced chal-
lenges during the past few years, was revitalized
in 2003 with an updated product assortment 
and fresh new packaging and advertising. We’re
encouraged by the brand’s strong turnaround, 
with more expected in 2004. Our Bestform®

brand, a leader in sports bras with casual and
cotton-based styling, will be building on its strong
position this year with new performance sports
bras and innovative gel straps. 

MEETING CONSUMER NEEDS

Regardless of where they shop, consumers 
are united in their search for value. Our Lily of

France® brand’s Value in Style® collection was 
a big hit with consumers in 2003. Brightly 
colored signage and packaging made a bold
statement in stores, highlighting Lily of France®

brand products offering exceptional value. 
2004 will mark the debut of the brand’s new 
Flirty Curves™ line, targeted to the fuller busted
consumer looking for a sexy bra with a great 
fit and comfort features.

To complement its well-established bra
business, our Vanity Fair® brand has been focusing
on building its pants business. An innovative
packaging concept introduced in 2003 allows
consumers to make convenient, multiple
purchases in their sizes. 

Our licensed Tommy Hilfiger® intimates
business is on the move, with strength in pants
and a growing line of bra products. Our results in
2003 were fueled by two new bra introductions:
Tommy’s Perfect T-Shirt Bra and Tommy Lace.
Growth in 2004 will come from new bra product
introductions like Tommy Naturals and Tommy
Shine, along with additional fabrications in pants.

VF also has a strong foothold internationally,
particularly in France and Spain. In 2003, we
launched a prototype for a new boutique concept,
St. Honore Espace (SHE), which will feature
several of our European brands.

INVESTING IN GROWTH

We use state-of-the-art technology and research
to support our brands and efficiently manage
inventory in our supply chain and on the retail floor.
A significant effort to upgrade our systems is
underway, which should result in reduced costs,
lower inventory and faster speed to market. 
We’re also undertaking an intensive research
project in 2004 to ensure our brands remain 
laser-focused on their specific consumer targets. 

VANITY FAIR

LILY OF FRANCE

VASSARETTE

BESTFORM

CURVATION

TOMMY HILFIGER*

LOU

BOLERO

GEMMA

INTIMA CHERRY

BELCOR

VARIANCE

MAJESTIC

CHANNELS OF DISTRIBUTION

National Chains and
Department Stores

VANITY FAIR

LILY OF FRANCE

TOMMY HILFIGER*

LOU

BOLERO

GEMMA

Mass Market

VASSARETTE

BESTFORM

CURVATION

United States 

Boutiques and
Department Stores

LOU

BOLERO

GEMMA

INTIMA CHERRY

BELCOR

VANITY FAIR

MAJESTIC

Mass Market

VARIANCE

BESTFORM

VASSARETTE

International

*licensed brand
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International Jeanswear

Unstable market conditions across Europe made
for a challenging year in 2003. However, our
brand positions remain strong, and we’re taking
aggressive action to shape the future of our
business and create a more powerful platform 
for long-term growth. Spanning Europe and Asia, 
our brands transcend the barriers of language 
and culture to deliver the most fashionable styles
at the right price.

REINVENTING RETAIL PARTNERSHIPS

Our retail service capabilities have long been 
a source of pride to us, but in 2003 we took these
capabilities to a new level. In-store shops featuring
our Lee®, Wrangler® and H.I.S® brands debuted in
2003 with one of our large customers in Germany,
generating double-digit sales gains within those
locations. We will expand this program significant-
ly in 2004, with rollouts slated for a number of
additional customers.

We’re delivering more product innovation 
more frequently, and we’ve shortened our product
development cycle time while increasing our invest-
ment in design and merchandising. Having the
right technology to handle the growing complexity
of managing multiple brands in retail stores is key.
We’re using a new retail support system, encom-
passing all the critical components of an advanced
retail competency, including assortment planning,
visual merchandising and retail sales analysis, with
three of the biggest retailers in Germany. 

BRANDS WITH STAYING POWER

The heritage and authenticity of our brands is
what gives them staying power. Our Lee® brand 
in Europe continues to lead the way in fabric, fit 
and finish through its successful Lee® 101 Premium
line. In support of the Lee® brand’s workwear

heritage, the Lee® Unionalls line was successfully
launched in the fall of 2003 and will be expanded
this year to include women’s products. Last year 
also marked the opening of our first Lee® store 
in London. We’re evaluating other similar retail
opportunities in key European cities.

Our Wrangler® brand is continuing to build 
upon its strength in men’s jeans and during 2003
achieved market leadership in this category for 
the first time in Germany, Europe’s largest market. 
An updated contemporary line was successfully
launched in 2003 built around five key fits —
Alaska, Dayton, Kane, Dakota and Rockville —
all of which include the classic bold Wrangler®

brand details. Spring 2004 marks the launch of
our premium Blue Bell™ line. Capitalizing on the
brand’s rich history, the line will include key product
features dating back to the 1940s and ’50s. 

NEW PRODUCTS FOR MASS SHOPPERS

Our Hero by Wrangler® and Maverick® brands
are poised for growth in 2004. For example, the
market for stretch denim continues to grow and
we have capitalized on this trend with the suc-
cessful launch of our EasiFit™ line, which provides
a great fit. The Hero by Wrangler® brand is also
the first brand to bring a line of stain resistant
casual pants to the mass channel through its
EasiClean™ line, which features a liquid repellent,
wrinkle resistant and breathable fabric.

We continue to extend our brands into new
markets. The Wrangler® brand was launched in
China in 2003 and our Lee®, Wrangler® and H.I.S®

brands are establishing a foothold in Russia. 
A network of licensees in countries including India,
Korea, Japan, Indonesia and the Philippines 
further extends the reach of our brands.

LEE

WRANGLER

HERO BY WRANGLER

H.I.S

MAVERICK

OLD AXE

(CLOCKWISE FROM LEFT) LEE, HERO BY WRANGLER, WRANGLER 

CHANNELS OF DISTRIBUTION

Department Stores

LEE

WRANGLER

H.I.S

Mass Market

HERO BY WRANGLER

MAVERICK

OLD AXE

Specialty Stores

LEE

WRANGLER

H.I.S
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(CLOCKWISE FROM LEFT) THE NORTH FACE, JANSPORT, EASTPAK

Outdoor

Our Outdoor coalition continues to show great
momentum. With The North Face®, JanSport®,
and Eastpak® brands, we’ve built a powerful
platform with the promise of further growth in 
the years to come. 

THE NORTH FACE: NEVER STOP EXPLORING™

Boasting sales growth of more than 25% in 2003,
The North Face® brand is setting the pace for the
competition. Continuous technical innovation is
the key to driving growth in all product categories.
A highlight in 2003 was the introduction of A5™

series outdoor lifestyle apparel, which complements
our technical products and which was one of the
most successful launches in the brand’s history.
Footwear is our fastest growing product category,
with new high performance running shoes and
hiking and winter boot offerings leading the way.

On the retail front, in 2003 we opened a new
flagship store in New York City, bringing the total
number of company-owned stores to seven. 
In partnership with key retailers, we also opened
stores in London and Heavenly Valley, California.
We now have a total of nine such stores in presti-
gious locations in North America and Europe. 
We plan to open a store in Boston and add five
locations in Europe this year.

The brand also saw big sales gains in interna-
tional markets, primarily in Europe. 

PACKING IT RIGHT

Our JanSport® brand maintains the number one
market share position in daypacks and an 80%-
plus brand awareness with teenage consumers in
the U.S. The JanSport® brand continues to deliver
innovation — a good example is its Live Wire® pack
featuring built in headphones. This year will mark
the introduction of our premium Airlift Exos™ Pack,

the third generation of our popular Airlift® series.
New sling bags and messenger bags, as well as
totes and accessories aimed at teen girls, have
established the brand as a fashion leader.

TAPPING NEW MARKETS

Our JanSport® brand will introduce a new line of
hydration packs this year that will allow consumers
to carry water easily and efficiently. We’ve partnered
with Nalgene Nunc International Corporation, 
a pioneer in portable hydration with its Nalgene®

brand, to incorporate unique features that will
form the core of our new Water Tower™ and 
Hydro Dynamic™ packs. And our new All Terra™

line of packs is aimed at adventure seeking world
travelers. Come fall 2004, we’re looking forward 
to the launch of a new line of JanSport® brand
outerwear and fleece products that leverage the
product development, design and sourcing capa-
bilities of The North Face® brand. We’ll also be
entering the mass market with Trans™ from JanSport,
a new line of high value, high style packs.

The Eastpak® brand continues to be the undis-
puted market leader in Europe. Using the more
edgy and contemporary look of its European coun-
terpart, we’re repositioning the brand in the U.S. to
capitalize on growth in the skate and surf markets. 

JANSPORT

EASTPAK

THE NORTH FACE

TRANS

CHANNELS OF DISTRIBUTION

National Chains and
Department Stores

JANSPORT

THE NORTH FACE

Mass Market

TRANS

Specialty Stores

JANSPORT

THE NORTH FACE

EASTPAK

United States 

Department Stores

EASTPAK

JANSPORT

THE NORTH FACE

Specialty Stores

EASTPAK

JANSPORT

THE NORTH FACE

International
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Imagewear

VF Imagewear, the industry leader in licensed
sports and image apparel, delivered a solid per-
formance in 2003 with record profitability. Our
Imagewear coalition’s strategy is to provide a “one
stop shop” for its customers, using an unmatched
portfolio of brands, products, services and tech-
nologies to deliver customized apparel solutions.

MAKING IT HAPPEN

With sales up 16% over last year, our Licensed
Sports Apparel unit, which provides a range of
casual apparel for sports fans shopping in mass
and national chain stores, has become a key
growth vehicle in our Imagewear coalition. We’ve
built partnerships with all the major sports leagues
including the National Football League (NFL),
Major League Baseball (MLB), National Collegiate
Athletic Association (NCAA,) National Basketball
Association (NBA), National Hockey League (NHL)
and NASCAR. Growth is being fueled by new
licenses that offer greater exclusivity, such as
those with the NFL and MLB, as well as from our
latest licensed brand from the Harley-Davidson
Motor Company. Innovative, eye-catching designs,
combined with value-driven products and rapid
service capabilities are the keys to our success.
We’ll continue to leverage our powerful business
model in 2004, with a focus on providing more
fashion-right women’s, young men’s and children’s
products while continuing to search for new
licensed opportunities that complement our
extensive capabilities. 

DELIVERING CUSTOMER SERVICE

Unemployment levels remain high, impacting our
workwear business. However, overall macroeconomic
trends for uniforms, particularly in the service sector,
remain positive. Bulwark®, a premier protective

apparel brand, had a strong year due to great
products that meet new regulations, expanded
brand awareness and much improved service levels.
Tapping into The North Face® brand’s expertise 
in performance outerwear, a new line, The Force,
was introduced under our Horace Small® brand,
the leader in public safety uniforms. Having access
to VF’s great portfolio of brands is a big competi-
tive advantage. We are now offering customized
image apparel using our Lee®, Wrangler®, JanSport®,
Eastpak® and Gitano® brands to all our customers.
A new addition to Imagewear’s portfolio are the 
E. Magrath® and Byron Nelson® lines of fine golf
apparel, which were part of our Nautica acquisition. 

Over the years, we’ve built a stable of blue-chip
accounts, with customers that include FedEx,
BellSouth, Compass and the Fire Department of
New York. In addition, we are the largest non-
defense uniform supplier to the Federal Government,
supplying not only the Transportation Security
Administration, but also U.S. Customs and the
Bureau of U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services.

KICKING IT UP A NOTCH

Improved technology capabilities, including over
30 new customer web sites that will transact over
$40 million of business, and the implementation 
of a new order management system, are notching
up our service levels. The expansion of our sourcing
capabilities — both owned and contracted — has
increased productivity to new highs. With a more
flexible and global sourcing strategy, we’ve lowered
our cost structure and increased our speed to market.

Looking ahead, we are geared up for an even
better 2004. We’ve got the right mix of people
and capabilities to ensure we’re ready for growth. 

LEE SPORT

CHASE AUTHENTICS*

CSA

RED KAP

GITANO 

BULWARK 

PENN STATE TEXTILE

NFL RED*

NFL WHITE*

HORACE SMALL 

VF SOLUTIONS

LEE

WRANGLER HERO

JANSPORT

EASTPAK

E. MAGRATH 

BYRON NELSON*

CHANNELS OF DISTRIBUTION

(LEFT TO RIGHT) BULWARK, NFL RED*

RED KAP

BULWARK

PENN STATE TEXTILE

VF SOLUTIONS

LEE

Image

LEE SPORT

CHASE AUTHENTICS*

CSA

NFL RED*

NFL WHITE*

E. MAGRATH 

BYRON NELSON*

Retail

WRANGLER HERO

JANSPORT

GITANO

HORACE SMALL

EASTPAK

*licensed brand
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(CLOCKWISE FROM LEFT) EARL JEAN, NAUTICA BLUE, NAUTICA

Sportswear

The acquisition of Nautica Enterprises, Inc. in
2003 is a major milestone for VF. In addition to
providing us with a strong lifestyle brand, the
acquisition also marks our entry into the sportswear
category, extends our reach to new consumer
segments and boosts our presence in department
and specialty stores. It also extends our reach
directly to consumers through Nautica® and Earl

Jean® retail stores. The Nautica® and Earl Jean®

brands now form the foundation of our new
Sportswear Coalition, and both provide tremen-
dous opportunities for future growth.

CHARTING A NEW COURSE

The Nautica® brand resonates strongly with 
consumers across many product categories. 
Its powerful presence in such categories as sports-
wear, jeanswear and children’s apparel attests 
to the brand’s strong connection with consumers.
The key to our future lies in strengthening our
current product offering and consumer marketing,
while unlocking the growth potential of the brand
in new categories and markets.

We have an experienced and energized 
management team that is focused on growing 
our owned businesses. We’re also working with 
a broad array of licensed partners, including men’s
tailored clothing, dress shirts, accessories, women’s
swimwear, fragrances, eyewear, watches and
home furnishings, to meet the Nautica® brand
consumer’s lifestyle needs.

UNDERSTANDING OUR CONSUMERS

Developing a deep understanding of consumers 
is critical to building brand equity, developing
trend-right products and delivering great value.
We will lay the foundation for our future growth
plans by conducting comprehensive consumer

research to better understand the department
store consumer’s expectations of the sportswear
category, the Nautica® brand within that category,
and the potential to build the Nautica® brand in
new categories including women’s apparel.

GROWING WITH STYLE

Founded in 1996, the Earl Jean® brand’s high
style, low rise jeans placed it on the map as a 
fast growing fashion leader. The brand has since
expanded into new styles, washes and fabrica-
tions, including leather and corduroy, and woven
shirts, skirts, t-shirts and outerwear. A men’s 
collection was added in 2002, featuring special
details and unique fabrics. Today, Earl Jean®

brand products can be found in leading specialty
and department stores in the U.S., Europe and
Japan, as well as in the Company’s retail locations
in the U.S, Japan and London. A new global
advertising campaign launches in 2004 to spur
greater consumer demand. 

CAPTURING THE OPPORTUNITY 

We have a full plate in 2004. We’ll be focused 
on improving our sportswear products, continuing
the momentum in our men’s jeans business,
exploring a women’s sportswear opportunity,
developing new licensing partnerships, expanding
our network of retail stores and building a 
stronger global presence for both the Nautica®

and Earl Jean® brands to achieve growth in the
years ahead.

NAUTICA

EARL JEAN

CHANNELS OF DISTRIBUTION

Department Stores

NAUTICA

Specialty Stores

EARL JEAN

NAUTICA
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it’s a new jeans cut for women by the Lee® brand,
technical features in The North Face® brand footwear
or a new line of bras under our Curvation™ brand.
We have state-of-the-art systems for managing
inventories that enable us to keep inventories tightly
controlled, even in volatile times like these. And
we’ve kept costs under control while maintaining 
a healthy investment in our brands.

Sales growth has been a challenge —
how are you addressing this?

We’re taking a new approach to growth. Several
months ago we launched an initiative within VF 
to surface substantial new growth opportunities
within our coalitions, across coalitions and into
new categories. We are developing specific plans
to unlock the potential of our current brands,
focus more heavily in certain geographic areas,
find new ways to partner with our customers and
step up the pace of acquisitions to strengthen 
our portfolio. We’ll have a lot more to say about
our plans in these areas as the year progresses.

How is Nautica doing, and what are
your plans for the brand in 2004?

We’re making great progress with Nautica, which
added $.16 per share to our earnings in 2003 — 
a terrific contribution and much better than we 
had anticipated. Our first priority for Nautica is to
stabilize the men’s sportswear business, and that
begins with improved products. With its casual
styling and spirited colors, our fall line represents a
leap forward for the brand, and the initial response
by customers has been positive. We’ve invested
more heavily in design and new product features
that have improved the quality of the products 
while providing a distinctive point of view. Nautica’s
other core businesses are doing well, and we
expect continued growth in our men’s jeans and
furnishings businesses in 2004. Our licensed
business remains strong and we’re entering several
new categories. And to support these initiatives,
we plan to increase our media spending by over
50% this year, in addition to increases in public
relations and consumer research.

What are you seeing internationally?

Our Outdoor businesses are doing very well 
internationally, particularly The North Face® brand,
where sales rose 50% in 2003 driven by new
product launches and expanded distribution.
Other highlights internationally included the launch
of the Wrangler® brand into China, a new push 
into Russia with our Lee®, Wrangler® and H.I.S®

brands and the opening of a new intimate apparel
boutique concept in Spain and Italy. Our international
jeans sales were up in 2003, but the increase
came entirely from the favorable impact of foreign
currency translation. Our jeans market share
positions remain healthy, but sales were impacted
by a brutally hot summer across much of Europe
in 2003 and soft overall economic trends in most
European markets. On the positive side, we did
see higher sales in Canada and Latin America.

VF has a variety of different brands 
in each category — how do you 
differentiate them?

Each brand is targeted to a specific consumer
segment. For example, in the mass market channel
we sell the Wrangler Hero®, Riders®, Rustler®, Timber

Creek by Wrangler® brands as well as several smaller
ones. The Wrangler Hero® brand is mostly targeted
to male consumers who are looking for great quality,
value and the latest fits, finishes and styles. The
Riders® brand is primarily a female brand, with styles
that fit and look terrific. Our Rustler® brand offers 
a durable, hardworking jean at a great value, while
our Chic®, Gitano® and Brittania® brands give us
niche brands that can be tailored to specific retailers’
needs. We take the same approach in intimate
apparel, where we have multiple brands in both
department and mass market stores. This approach
also allows us to successfully identify and fill gaps in
our portfolio. One good example is the 2003 launch
of our new Curvation® brand, which we developed
specifically to fill the needs of curvaceous women
shopping in mass market stores. Another is the
launch of the Riggs Workwear by Wrangler™ line of
jeans and shirts that incorporates special features
for men working in construction and other jobs
that require products with exceptional durability.
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To Our Stockholders

A Conversation with Mackey J. McDonald
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

How would you characterize 2003?

It was a very good year for VF, as we reported
record earnings per share, made a major acquisi-
tion — Nautica — and increased our dividend. We
saw terrific growth in our Outdoor coalition, driven
by a sales increase of more than 25% in The North

Face® brand. So we feel very good about how our
acquisition strategy is contributing to our growth.
In addition, our Imagewear coalition continued its
turnaround, with a substantial increase in profitability.
And, our mass jeans business performed better
than expected, despite the entry by a major com-
petitor into the mass market. Our businesses enjoy
healthy profitability and generate strong cash flow.
From a balance sheet and liquidity perspective, 
we ended the year in great shape, with over a half
billion dollars in cash. Cash flow from operations
topped $540 million in 2003, also better than
anticipated. VF’s shares provided a total return 
to stockholders of 22.7% in 2003.

How would you describe current
industry conditions?

Industry conditions remain challenging, with
generally weak retail sales of apparel. Consumers
have been cautious and selective in their spending.
They are looking either for great value and bargains
or for distinctive brands that offer truly unique 
and innovative products. In response, retailers have
been managing inventories very tightly. Pricing
continues to be under pressure. Fortunately, we’re
adept at managing in times like these. We rely on
our comprehensive understanding of consumers’
apparel needs to deliver the right products at the
right value. We give consumers a reason to buy,
through emphasizing innovation in all we do, whether
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What will the removal of quotas on
apparel from China mean for consumers,
apparel manufacturers — and VF?

The change in quotas will almost certainly increase
China’s share of the apparel market and create
growth in their exports, which could prove a
detriment to other garment producing countries
and economies. While apparel prices have been
declining for some time now, this event could
bring them even lower — a boost for consumers.
For manufacturers, the question is how to take
advantage of evolving market dynamics while 
minimizing the risks associated with changes in
sourcing strategies. VF has long taken a balanced
approach to manufacturing and sourcing. We 
have extensive capabilities in place, not only in
China but in other markets including Mexico, the
Caribbean and South Asia. Our Global Sourcing
Office, headquartered in Hong Kong, manages all
the Far East sourcing requirements for our brands
and complements our owned manufacturing in
Mexico and Central America. As we look forward,
we will continue to manage our supply chain 
from a global perspective and adjust as needed 
to changes in the quota environment.

What are your priorities for cash flow?

Acquisitions. We believe our industry will continue
to consolidate and we intend to participate actively
in this process. We have the balance sheet and cash
flow to make additional acquisitions in 2004, and
the operating platforms within our coalitions to effi-
ciently integrate them. More specifically, we are
looking to fill gaps in our Jeanswear, Global Intimates
and Outdoor coalitions. We’re seeking lifestyle brands
with strong growth potential that give us access to
new consumer groups, new channels of distribution
and new geographic markets. Plus, Nautica gives
us a strong platform in sportswear, which we plan
to leverage by adding new sportswear brands.

What are your financial targets?

We target 6% sales growth, with much of that
coming from acquisitions. Our other financial
targets include a 14% operating margin, a debt 
to capital ratio below 40%, return on capital 
of 17% and a dividend payout ratio of 30%.

What’s your outlook for 2004?

We’re looking forward to another record year in
2004 and are currently projecting a 5% increase 
in both sales and earnings. Sales growth will be
driven primarily from the acquisition of Nautica,
which is expected to contribute approximately
$550 million to full year sales and at least $0.16 
to earnings per share in 2004. Our Outdoor busi-
nesses are also expecting another strong year 
of double-digit growth. Total jeanswear sales are
expected to be about flat with prior year levels,
with low single-digit sales increases in both Global
Intimates and Imagewear. We also expect sales
will reflect the exit of our Playwear business, which
contributed $141 million to sales in 2003.

What are you most excited about,
going forward?

I’m most excited about the opportunities we’re
working on for future growth. I believe the VF 
of five years from now will be very different from 
what it is today. We’ll have more growth engines,
more lifestyle brands that are truly global in reach
and more synergies across our different coalitions.
I’m excited about the opportunities we’ll generate for
our associates around the world. We’ll be success-
ful because we have an extraordinarily experienced
and talented group of leaders committed to making
growth happen in VF. And I’m excited about the
potential we have to continue to increase value 
for our stockholders.

Mackey J. McDonald
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
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Financial Review

In 2003 we reported higher sales and record 
earnings per share. Our balance sheet, cash flow
and liquidity are strong. We ended the year with
over $500 million in cash. Our return on capital 
was 16.6% and cash flow from operations reached
$544 million. We’re looking forward to another 
very good year in 2004.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Results of Operations and Financial Condition

OVERVIEW

VF Corporation is a leading marketer of apparel
products in the United States and in several 
international markets. VF’s vision is to grow by
building lifestyle brands that excite consumers
around the world.

VF owns a diversified portfolio of brands 
with strong market positions. We operate in four
principal consumer product categories and market
occupational apparel to distributors and major
employers. Our principal product categories and
major brands are summarized as follows:

Product Category

Jeanswear
Intimate apparel
Sportswear
Outdoor products
Occupational apparel

VF-owned Brands

Lee®, Wrangler®, Riders®, Rustler®, Timber Creek by Wrangler®

Vanity Fair®, Lily of France®, Vassarette®, Bestform®

Nautica®, Earl Jean®

The North Face®, JanSport®, Eastpak®

Red Kap®, Bulwark®

VF has a broad customer base, with products 
distributed through leading department, chain,
specialty and discount stores. Our ten largest
customers represented 41% of total 2003 sales.

We have established several long-term financial
targets that guide us in our long-term decisions.
Attainment of these targets should drive increases
in shareholder value. These targets are summa-
rized below:

• Sales growth of 6% per year — The overall apparel
industry in recent years has been relatively flat 
in terms of unit volume, with generally flat to
slightly declining prices. This has also been the
case within VF. Looking to 2004, we expect a
5% growth in sales, driven by the full year effect
of Nautica Enterprises, Inc. (Nautica), a leading
sportswear company acquired in August 2003,
and continued growth in our Outdoor business-
es. On a longer-term basis, achieving our growth
target will require a combination of internal
growth and acquisitions.

In our search for acquisitions, we focus on
branded apparel businesses that fit our strategic
goals. We evaluate numerous acquisition candidates
each year and insist that a potential acquisition
satisfy our strategic and financial goals. More
specifically, we are interested in lifestyle brands
or businesses that might add to our current
jeanswear, sportswear, intimate apparel or outdoor
product categories, but we are receptive to 
other opportunities.

• Operating income of 14% — In recent years, we
have made progress toward this goal, as demon-
strated by attaining an operating margin of
12.4% in 2003.

Some of our businesses currently exceed that
14% benchmark. While most of the remaining
businesses enjoy double digit margins, we recognize
that competitive pressures may keep some 
from achieving that goal. We continually evaluate
our existing businesses. In 2002, we exited the
swimwear and the private label knitwear businesses
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SALES 
Dollars in millions

5,220 5,207
5,084

2001 20032002

GROSS MARGIN
Percent to sales

37.436.032.9

200320022001

DEBT TO CAPITAL RATIO 
Percent

33.731.7 28.6

20032001 2002

ANALYSIS OF RESULTS 

OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS 

Acquisition of Nautica

A major event for VF in 2003 was the acquisition
of Nautica and related rights in August for a total
purchase price of $683.9 million. Nautica consists
primarily of the Nautica® men’s wholesale sports-
wear business, along with significant Nautica® retail
and licensing businesses. In addition, it includes
the smaller businesses of Earl Jean® jeans and
sportswear, E. Magrath® golf sportswear and 
John Varvatos® designer apparel (which is held 
for disposition). This acquisition provides a growth
platform for VF in sportswear, which is a new
product category for VF. The men’s sportswear
category has been weak in department stores for
the last several years. We believe that new manage-
ment led by Mr. David Chu, the founder of the
Nautica® brand, can return the brand to its heritage
so that it can resume its growth. And we believe
that the Nautica® brand is an important lifestyle
brand that can be extended across additional
product categories for both men and women and
extended to new geographic regions.

The combined Nautica businesses contributed
$252.2 million to VF’s 2003 sales, and they are
expected to contribute approximately $550 million
to full year sales in 2004. This full year amount 
is significantly less than the $693.7 million reported
by Nautica in its fiscal year ended March 1, 2003,
its last full year as a separate public company.
Approximately $75 million of that sales decline is
due to product lines that have been exited by prior
management or current VF management. The
remainder of the decline is in the men’s sportswear
category, offset by sales growth at the Nautica®

retail stores and in Nautica® men’s jeans and
underwear and men’s and women’s sleepwear.

Nautica contributed an incremental $0.16 to VF’s
2003 earnings per share (with all per share amounts
presented on a diluted basis). Considering the
August 27 acquisition date and the seasonal nature
of Nautica’s earnings, VF received the benefit of
Nautica’s historically stronger earnings period in
2003. While we expect Nautica’s operating income
to grow in 2004, a full year of interest expense 
on the borrowings used to fund that acquisition 

is expected to result in a 2004 earnings per share
contribution that is comparable with 2003. We do
expect further earnings growth in succeeding years.

See Note B to the consolidated financial 
statements for more information on the acquisition
of Nautica.

Restructuring Charges and 

Discontinued Operations 

During the fourth quarter of 2001, we initiated 
a Strategic Repositioning Program. This consisted 
of a series of actions to exit underperforming 
businesses and to aggressively reduce our overall
cost structure. (As discussed in the following
paragraph, the business exits are accounted for
as discontinued operations.) Cost reduction initia-
tives related specifically to closure of manufacturing
plants, consolidation of distribution centers and
reduction of administrative functions. These actions
were designed to help VF achieve its long-term
targets of 14% operating income and 17% return
on capital.

As part of the Strategic Repositioning Program,
we decided to exit the Private Label knitwear and
the Jantzen swimwear businesses having combined
sales of approximately $300 million. The Private
Label knitwear business was liquidated during 2002.
Trademarks and certain operating assets of the
Jantzen swimwear business were sold and the
remaining assets were liquidated during 2002.
Because VF has exited those businesses, the
operating results, assets, liabilities and cash flows
of the businesses are separately presented as 
discontinued operations for all periods in the con-
solidated financial statements. During 2003, these
discontinued businesses had no effect on VF’s
operating results. During 2002, they contributed
net income of $8.3 million ($0.07 per share),
including $9.3 million of pretax gains on disposi-
tion of real estate and a $1.4 million gain on the
sale of the Jantzen business. Operating results
during 2002 for the two discontinued businesses
were better than expected due to favorable
consumer response to the 2002 Jantzen® swimwear
line and expense control during the liquidation
period. During 2001, these businesses generated
a net loss of $79.4 million ($0.69 per share), which
included a pretax charge of $111.4 million ($0.70

and currently have a plan to exit the Healthtex®

and Nike® childrenswear business. Each of these
had been a profitable business for VF, but they no
longer met our strategic and financial objectives.

We have taken numerous actions in recent
years to increase our operating margin by reducing
our cost structure. Many of these actions have
centered on lowering our product cost by changing
our sourcing mix. Several years ago, production
was sourced from mostly VF-owned domestic
production capacity; today, approximately 95%
of the products we sell in the U.S. markets are
obtained from lower cost VF-owned offshore
capacity and production contracted from indepen-
dent third parties.

Looking to acquisitions, we believe that our
recently acquired Nautica sportswear business
can achieve this 14% goal, and we are taking
steps toward that end.

• Return on invested capital of 17% — We believe
that a high return on capital is closely correlated
with enhancing shareholder value. We calculate
return on invested capital as income before net
interest expense, after income taxes, divided 
by the sum of average short and long-term debt
and common stockholders’ equity. VF earned 
a 16.6% return on capital in 2003. Further, 
we expect acquisition targets to have the ability 
to achieve returns that allow VF to maintain 
a 17% return on capital on a long-term basis.

• Debt to capital of less than 40% — To maintain 
a conservative financial position, we have estab-
lished a goal of keeping our total debt to less
than 40% of our total capitalization, with capital-
ization defined as our combined short and
long-term debt plus common stockholders’ equity.
We would, however, be willing to exceed this
target ratio, on a short-term basis, for the right
acquisition. Despite the 2003 acquisition of
Nautica and its related financing, this ratio was
reduced to 33.7% at the end of 2003 and we
ended the year with over $500 million in cash and
equivalents, demonstrating VF’s ability to generate
strong cash flow from operations.

• Dividend payout ratio of 30% — Our target is to
return 30% of our earnings to our stockholders
through a consistent dividend policy. We have
maintained this payout ratio on a long-term basis.
As our earnings have grown over the years, our
Board of Directors has been able to increase our
dividends paid per share each year for the past
31 years. Our payout rate was 28% for 2003, and
we most recently increased our quarterly dividend
in the fourth quarter of 2003 to an indicated annual
payout of $1.04 per share for 2004.
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CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATIONS 
Dollars in millions

646601
544

RETURN ON CAPITAL 
Percent

16.9 16.6

8.0

20022001 2003 2002 20032001

In millions

Net sales - prior year
Ongoing operations
Acquisitions

Net sales - current year

2002 Compared
with 2003

$ 5,084
(141)
264

$ 5,207

2001 Compared
with 2002

$ 5,220
(136)

–

$ 5,084 

Substantially all of the sales decline in our ongoing
businesses during 2003 and 2002 was due to
decreases in unit volume, offset in part by the effects
of foreign currency translation as discussed in the
second paragraph following. Approximately 90%
of the sales decline during 2003 and 50% of the
decline in 2002 resulted from the closure of stores
and the impact of operating under bankruptcy pro-
tection by two major customers: Kmart Corporation,
which filed for bankruptcy protection in January
2002 and emerged from bankruptcy in May 2003
as Kmart Holding Corporation, and Ames Department
Stores, Inc., which operated under bankruptcy
protection from August 2001 until its liquidation in
the second half of 2002. Sales declines from these
two major customers were primarily in domestic
jeanswear. Of the remainder of the sales declines
in both years, notable were decreases in occupa-
tional apparel and childrenswear, partially offset 
by gains in our outdoor businesses. Additional 
details on sales are provided in the section titled
Information by Business Segment.

The acquisition of Nautica added 5.0% to sales
in 2003, with the full year effect of this acquisition
expected to add an additional 5% to 6% in 2004.

In translating foreign currencies into the U.S.
dollar, the weaker U.S. dollar in relation to most
functional currencies where VF conducts business
(primarily the European euro countries) improved
sales comparisons by $128 million in 2003 relative
to 2002. For 2002, sales comparisons benefited
by $7 million relative to 2001. The 2002 benefit
was composed of a $31 million benefit due to the
weaker U.S. dollar in relation to most European
currencies (primarily the euro), offset by a $24
million reduction due to the stronger U.S. dollar 
in relation to Latin American currencies (principally
the Argentine peso). The average translation rate
for the euro was $1.12 per euro during the year
2003, compared with $0.94 during 2002 and
$0.90 during 2001. Based on the translation rate
of $1.26 per euro at the end of 2003, reported
sales in 2004 may also receive a translation
benefit compared with 2003.

The following table presents the percentage
relationship to Net Sales for components of our
Consolidated Statements of Income:

See Note P to the consolidated financial state-
ments for more information on the 2001/2002
restructuring charges.

Consolidated Statements of Income

The following table presents a summary of the
changes in our Net Sales in the last two years:

per share) for the estimated loss on disposition.
See Note C to the consolidated financial statements
for further details about the discontinued operations.
Unless otherwise stated, the remaining sections 
of this discussion and analysis of operations and
financial condition relate to continuing operations.

Under the Strategic Repositioning Program, 
we recorded pretax charges of $125.4 million 
in 2001 and an additional $46.0 million in 2002.
Partially offsetting these restructuring costs, we
recorded adjustments during 2002 totaling $14.8
million and during 2001 totaling $10.9 million to
reduce previously accrued restructuring liabilities
due to changes in circumstances arising during
those years. In addition during 2002, we recognized
$4.9 million of gains on disposal of plants closed

under the restructuring actions. Restructuring
charges in 2002, net of these reversals and gains on
sale of assets, totaled $26.3 million. The net charges
in 2001 and 2002 related to actions, by segment, as
follows: $89.3 million in Consumer Apparel, primarily
domestic jeanswear; $5.0 million in Outdoor Apparel
and Equipment; $28.1 million in Occupational
Apparel; $0.4 million in All Other; and $18.0 million
in Corporate, primarily information systems.

The costs of the 2001/2002 Strategic
Repositioning Program as discussed above, net 
of the reversal of restructuring liabilities no longer
required due to changes in circumstances and
gains on sale of closed facilities, were included 
in the following captions of the Consolidated
Statements of Income:

Dollars in millions

Cost of goods sold
Marketing, administrative and general expenses
Goodwill impairment

Total

Amount

$ 63.8
46.7

4.0

$ 114.5

Percent to Sales

1.2%
.9%
.1%

2.2%

Amount

$ 17.8
8.5

–

$ 26.3

Percent to Sales

.3%

.2%
–

.5%

2002 2001

Total cash expenses related to the Strategic
Repositioning Program are expected to approximate
$94 million, of which $85 million has been paid.
This amount has been substantially offset by 
$84 million of cash proceeds from asset sales and
from the sale or liquidation of the two businesses
accounted for as discontinued operations, leaving
a net cash outflow of approximately $10 million.
This net amount represents a substantial improve-
ment from the $40 million net cash outflow projected
at the end of 2001 because of higher proceeds
received on sale or liquidation of assets and better
than expected performance of the discontinued
businesses during the shutdown periods.

As part of the Strategic Repositioning Program, we
have closed 30 higher cost North American manufac-
turing plants to reduce overall manufacturing capacity
and to continue our move toward lower cost, more
flexible global sourcing. Finally, we have consolidated
certain distribution centers and reduced our admin-
istrative functions and staffing in the United States,
Europe and Latin America. We originally stated that
the Strategic Repositioning Program would result 
in $100 million of recurring cost reductions in 2002
and an additional $30 million of savings to be
achieved in 2003. Results have exceeded this original
projection, as we achieved cost reductions of approx-
imately $170 million in 2003 compared with 2001.
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4.2% of sales in 2001, with the increase focused
on our Lee®, Wrangler®, Vanity Fair®, Vassarette®

and The North Face® brands. In addition, incentive
compensation expense increased by 0.5% of sales
in 2002 due to our improved financial performance.

We include cooperative advertising costs and
warehousing, shipping and handling costs in
Marketing, Administrative and General Expenses,
as covered in our accounting policies in Note A 
to the consolidated financial statements. Some
other companies may classify similar costs in Cost
of Goods Sold. Accordingly, our gross margins
and operating expenses may not be directly com-
parable with those companies.

Royalty and Other Income increased by 
$7.0 million in 2003 and $1.5 million in 2002. 
The increase in 2003 is primarily from the Nautica
acquisition in August 2003. Further growth in
royalty income is expected for 2004 due to the 
full year effect of this acquisition.

Goodwill Impairment consisted of a charge of
$2.3 million in our childrenswear reporting unit in
2002 based on a revised forecast of its profits and
cash flows, and a charge of $4.0 million in 2001
related to an occupational apparel business unit
that was closed. Goodwill Amortization, which was
$33.9 million in 2001, is no longer required under
FASB Statement No. 142, as discussed in Note A
to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest Expense in 2003 decreased by $10.0
million from 2002, while Interest Expense in 2002
decreased by $22.0 million from 2001. The decrease
in 2003 was primarily due to lower average interest
rates, while the decrease in 2002 was due to lower
average borrowings. Average interest-bearing debt
outstanding totaled approximately $810 million 
for 2003, $770 million for 2002 and $1,120 million 
for 2001. The weighted average interest rate was
7.3% for 2003, 8.1% for 2002 and 8.0% for 2001.
Interest Income in 2003 included $5.7 million related
to the settlement of federal income tax issues.

The effective income tax rate for continuing
operations was 33.5% in 2003, compared with
35.1% in 2002 and 41.2% in 2001. The effective
tax rate declined in 2003 relative to the prior year
due to (1) nontaxable income related to investments
held for employee benefit plans, (2) lower foreign
operating losses with no related tax benefit and 

(3) favorable settlements in 2003 of prior years’ federal
and state income tax returns. The effective rate
declined in 2002 due to (1) lower foreign operating
losses with no related tax benefit, (2) elimination 
of nondeductible goodwill amortization expense
and (3) income of a foreign subsidiary being taxed
at a reduced rate due to a tax status that is
scheduled to expire in 2010.

Income from continuing operations was $397.9
million ($3.61 per share) in 2003. This compares
with income from continuing operations of $364.4
million ($3.24 per share) in 2002 and $217.3 million
($1.89 per share) in 2001. Income from continuing
operations increased 9% in 2003, while earnings
per share increased 11%, reflecting the benefit of
our share repurchase program. In 2002, income from
continuing operations increased 68% over the prior
year, while similarly the corresponding earnings per
share increased 71%. Earnings in 2001 included
significant restructuring charges, as discussed in
the preceding section. In translating foreign curren-
cies into the U.S. dollar, the weaker U.S. dollar had
a $0.14 favorable impact on earnings per share in
2003 compared with the prior year, and in 2002
the weaker U.S. dollar had a $0.04 favorable impact
compared with the prior year. The acquisition of
Nautica in 2003 had a $0.16 per share positive
impact on 2003 results relative to 2002.

VF adopted FASB Statement No. 142, Goodwill

and Other Intangible Assets, at the beginning of
2002. In adopting this Statement, we estimated
the fair value of VF’s individual business reporting
units on a discounted cash flow basis. This evalu-
ation, and the related valuation of net assets of
each reporting unit, indicated that recorded Goodwill
exceeded its fair value at several business units
where performance had not met management’s
expectations at the time of their acquisition. 
More specifically, the European intimate apparel,
childrenswear, occupational apparel and licensed
sportswear business units had been profitable in
years prior to adoption of FASB Statement No. 142
but at a lower level than anticipated at the dates
of their respective acquisitions. The Latin American
jeanswear business units had not been profitable
due to deteriorating economic conditions in South
America, but profitability was expected in the future.
In each case, recorded Goodwill was expected to

DIVIDENDS PER SHARE 
Dollars

1.01.97
.93

RETURN ON AVERAGE COMMON EQUITY
Percent

22.322.1

9.8

200320022001 200320022001

Gross margin (sales less cost of goods sold)

Marketing, administrative and general expenses
Royalty and other income
Goodwill amortization and impairment

Operating income

2002

36.0%

(24.2)
.4
–

12.2%

2001

32.9%

(23.9)
.4
(.7)

8.7%

2003

37.4%

(25.6)
.6
–

12.4%

Gross margins improved to 37.4% of sales in
2003, compared with 36.0% in 2002 and 32.9% 
in 2001. Approximately 1.0% of the 2003 improve-
ment in gross margin as a percent of sales was
due to changes in the mix of our businesses, as we
have experienced sales growth in our higher margin
outdoor and international jeans businesses and
from the acquisition of Nautica. The remaining 0.4%
improvement is primarily related to benefits of the
Strategic Repositioning Program and lower
restructuring costs.

In 2002, of the total 3.1% improvement in gross
margins as a percent of sales, approximately 1.5%
was due to the benefits of the Strategic Repositioning
Program. The benefits of lower cost sourcing and
increased operating efficiencies were obtained
from closing higher cost production facilities and
moving production to VF-owned offshore locations
or to offshore independent contractors. In addition,
reduced restructuring charges improved gross
margins by 0.9% in 2002. The remaining 0.7%
increase in gross margins in 2002 was due primarily
to lower raw material costs and increased
operating efficiencies. 

As a result of the Strategic Repositioning
Program, the amount of domestic sales derived
from products manufactured in lower cost locations
outside the United States has increased each year
over the last three years. Now, only 5% of the units
we sell in the United States are manufactured in
VF-owned domestic plants. In contrast, at the end

of 2000, approximately one-third of our products
sold in the United States were manufactured in our
domestic plants. Today, of the remaining products
supporting domestic sales, 45% are manufactured
in VF-owned facilities in Mexico and the Caribbean
Basin and 50% are obtained from contractors,
primarily in Asia.

Marketing, Administrative and General Expenses
increased as a percent of sales to 25.6% in 2003,
compared with 24.2% in 2002 and 23.9% in 2001.
During 2003, approximately 0.7% of the increase
in these expenses as a percent of sales was due to
changes in the mix of our businesses, with a larger
portion of sales coming from businesses having a
higher expense percentage. In addition, increased
pension cost in 2003 resulted in a 0.5% increase.
The remaining 0.2% of the increase was due to lower
sales volume in our ongoing businesses without 
a proportionate decline in expenses, many of
which are fixed.

During 2002, Marketing, Administrative and
General Expenses increased by 0.3% of sales.
Benefits of the Strategic Repositioning Program of
0.6% resulted from the consolidation of distribution
centers and reduced administrative expenses.
Reduced restructuring charges incurred in 2002
improved the expense percentage by 0.7% compared
with the prior year. These savings were more than
offset by increased spending and inflationary cost
increases on a declining sales base. Advertising
spending increased to 4.8% of sales in 2002 from
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Consumer Apparel: The Consumer Apparel
segment consists of our jeanswear, women’s intimate
apparel, sportswear and childrenswear business-
es. Overall, segment sales increased 2% in 2003,
composed of a 6% increase from acquisitions and
a 4% decrease in ongoing businesses. Ongoing
operations included the benefit of $97 million from
foreign currency translation. In our ongoing busi-
nesses, approximately 75% of the decline in total
segment sales was due to the impact of two
customers’ bankruptcies and their resulting store
closures mentioned previously. 

Overall domestic jeanswear sales declined 7%.
The unit volume decline for the bankruptcies noted
accounted for 75% of the sales dollar decline in
domestic jeanswear. The balance was due to
selected price reductions and changes in product
mix. Our jeanswear sales at Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.,
our largest customer, increased slightly during 2003
despite the introduction by Levi Strauss & Co. of a
new line of jeans in the discount channel in the
United States and Canada. The introduction of this
competing product during the second quarter at
Wal-Mart, and an additional discount chain late in
the year, did result in some reduction in floor space
for VF products and some lost sales. International
jeanswear sales increased 5% in 2003 due to a
$72 million favorable effect of foreign currency
translation. Domestic intimate apparel sales in 2003
were flat in the department store and mass market
channels, but overall declined by 3% due to a
decrease in private label programs. However, new
private label programs are scheduled to be launched
during 2004. International intimate apparel sales
increased by 9%, due to a $25 million favorable
currency translation effect. Sales declined 18% in
childrenswear in 2003 due to competitive factors
in the department store channel of distribution,
particularly the increasing presence of private label
goods; see the fourth paragraph below discussing
the possible disposition of this business. The newly
acquired Nautica, Earl Jean and John Varvatos
businesses contributed $249 to 2003 sales. 

Consumer Apparel Segment Profit declined 
by 10% during 2003. This was composed of a 
6% increase from the contribution of the acquisition
cited above, offset by a 16% decline in our ongoing
businesses. In the ongoing businesses, over 60%

of the decline related to the bankruptcies
mentioned above. Also in our ongoing businesses,
Segment Profit declined due to selected price
decreases and a net change in product mix (lower
margin products primarily in our domestic jeanswear
business), offset by benefits resulting from the
Strategic Repositioning Program.

During 2002, overall segment sales declined by
3%. Slightly over one-half of the sales decline was
due to the two bankruptcies cited above. Overall
domestic jeanswear sales declined by 4% in 2002,
primarily as a result of these bankruptcies. The
remainder of the sales decline existed within our
intimate apparel and childrenswear businesses,
offset by gains in our European jeanswear business.
Favorable foreign currency translation effects in
European jeanswear and intimate apparel were
offset by negative currency translation effects in
Latin America, primarily resulting from the devalua-
tion of the Argentine peso. Domestic intimate
apparel sales declined 4% in 2002, as increases 
in the Vanity Fair® and licensed Tommy Hilfiger®

department store brands were more than offset 
by a lack of new private label programs and 
by competitive pressures in the mass channel
resulting in a reduction in floor space for the
Vassarette® brand. International intimate apparel
sales were flat in 2002, including a $6 million
favorable currency translation effect.

Consumer Apparel Segment Profit advanced
8% in 2002. Profit increased across all business
units, with the exception of childrenswear, and was
due to cost reduction benefits realized from the
Strategic Repositioning Program. Partially offset-
ting this increase was the effect of the reduced
volume resulting from the bankruptcies cited above.
And at domestic jeanswear, selected price reductions
were offset by favorable changes in product mix.

To strengthen its business portfolio, VF exited
two underperforming businesses during 2002.
Considering the declining sales and current unprof-
itable operations of our childrenswear business,
consisting of the Healthtex® and licensed Nike®

brands, we have evaluated various strategic
options over the last year and are currently planning
to sell the business. In addition, the John Varvatos
business, acquired as part of the Nautica acquisi-
tion, is being held for sale. These business units

be recoverable from future undiscounted operating
cash flows. The write-down of Goodwill upon
adoption of FASB Statement No. 142 was attribut-
able to differences between the fair value approach
under this Statement and the undiscounted cash
flow approach used under previous accounting 
literature. The adoption of FASB Statement No. 142
resulted in a nonrecurring noncash charge of $527.3
million in 2002, without tax benefit ($4.69 per share).
See Note A to the consolidated financial statements
for additional details.

VF reported net income of $397.9 million ($3.61
per share) in 2003. Including the effect of the above
accounting change and the discontinued operations
discussed in the previous section, VF reported a
net loss of $154.5 million ($1.38 per share) in 2002
and net income of $137.8 million ($1.19 per share)
in 2001.

Information by Business Segment

For internal financial reporting purposes, manage-
ment and VF’s Board of Directors evaluate operating
performance at the business unit level. Operating
performance of each business unit consists of its
sales and direct operating expenses, royalty income
for which it has responsibility and its share of cen-
tralized corporate expenses directly related to the
business unit.

The business units referred to above have been
grouped into four reportable segments. See Note R
to the consolidated financial statements for the
criteria used in grouping the business units into the
business segments. For business segment reporting
purposes, Segment Sales and Segment Profit
represent sales and operating income that are under
the direct control of the individual business units.
Corporate expenses not apportioned to business
units, net interest expense, amortization of intangi-
ble assets and goodwill, and restructuring charges
are excluded from Segment Profit. Importantly, this
basis of performance evaluation is consistent with
that used for management incentive compensation. 

Also see Note R for a summary of our results 
of operations and other information by business
segment, along with the differences between Segment
Profit and Consolidated Income from Continuing
Operations before Income Taxes. Segment results
are not necessarily indicative of the operating results
that would have been reported had each business
segment been an independent, stand-alone entity
during the periods presented. Further, VF’s pres-
entation of Segment Profit may not be comparable
with similar measures used by other companies.

The following table presents a summary of the
changes in our Net Sales by business segment
during the last two years:

In millions

Net sales – 2001
Ongoing operations

Net sales – 2002
Ongoing operations
Acquisitions

Net sales – 2003

Occupational
Apparel

$ 536
(45)

491
(41)

–

$ 450

All Other

$ 253
28

281
(10)
15

$ 286

Consumer 
Apparel

$ 3,938
(134)

3,804
(163)
249

$ 3,890

Outdoor Apparel 
and Equipment

$ 493
15

508
73

–

$ 581

Total

$ 5,220
(136)

5,084
(141)
264

$ 5,207
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• Information Systems — Included are all costs of
our management information systems and of our
centralized shared services center. Operating
costs of information systems and shared services
are charged to the business segments based on
utilization of those services, such as minutes of
computer processing time, number of transactions
or number of users. However, costs to develop
and implement new computer applications that
will be implemented across VF are not allocated
to the business segments. Information systems
costs were lower in 2003 and 2002 due to reduc-
tions in VF staffing and in consulting services
since 2001.

• Headquarter’s Costs — Centralized retirement 
and insurance costs are charged directly to the
appropriate business units. Other headquarter’s
costs include compensation and benefits of
corporate management and staff, legal and pro-
fessional fees, and administrative and general
expenses, which are not apportioned to the
business units. Costs in 2003 and 2002 were
higher than the 2001 level. Costs increased in 2003
relative to 2001 due to an increase in legal and
professional fees and increased in 2002 due to
the $4.0 million initial funding of the VF Foundation
for charitable grants, higher incentive compensa-
tion earned in that year based on VF’s financial
performance relative to its targets and professional
fees incurred for acquisition efforts.

• Trademark Maintenance and Enforcement —
Legal and other costs of registering, maintaining
and enforcing VF’s portfolio of trademarks, plus
costs of licensing administration, are controlled

by a centralized trademark and licensing staff
and are not allocated to the business units. The
majority of the change in costs from year-to-year
related to losses on hedging foreign licensing
cash flows in 2003 and 2002 and to similar
hedging gains in 2001.

• Other — This category includes adjustments 
to convert the earnings of certain business units
from the FIFO inventory valuation method used
for internal reporting to the LIFO method for con-
solidated financial reporting, various consolidating
adjustments, and miscellaneous items that result
from corporate programs or corporate-managed
decisions not allocated to the business units for
internal management reporting. In 2002, this
category included a special $8.0 million incentive
compensation payment covering most employees
and an increase of $3.7 million in worker’s com-
pensation expense due to refinement of the
estimated expense, based on consultation with
our independent adviser. These charges were
retained in corporate for internal management
reporting instead of being apportioned to the
business units based on the nature of these items
and the inability of our business unit manage-
ment to influence such items. Similarly in 2001,
this category included favorable pension expense
and worker’s compensation insurance expense
adjustments, based on consultation with our
independent advisers.

The three other types of costs included in the
reconciliation of Segment Profit to Consolidated
Income from Continuing Operations before Income
Taxes are discussed as follows:

had combined 2003 sales of $148.5 million and 
an operating loss of $10.8 million. A possible dis-
position of the childrenswear business could result
in a loss representing $0.03 to $0.05 per share 
in 2004. Since the John Varvatos business was
recorded at its expected sales proceeds, a possible
disposition would not have a significant effect on
our operating results. See Note C to the consoli-
dated financial statements for more information.

Outdoor Apparel and Equipment: The Outdoor
Apparel and Equipment segment consists of VF’s
outdoor-related businesses represented by The

North Face® products (outerwear and equipment)
and the JanSport® and Eastpak® brands (daypacks
and backpacks). Sales increased 14% and profit
increased 32% in 2003, with 6% (or $31 million) 
of the sales increase and 11% of the profit increase
due to the effects of foreign currency translation.
During 2003, sales and profits advanced sharply 
at The North Face in both the United States and
Europe due to strong consumer demand for its
products. Sales and profits increased slightly in the
backpack and daypack business.

During 2002, Segment Sales increased 3%. 
An increase of 20% in first quality sales of The North

Face® products in the United States and an 11%
increase in our international Outdoor businesses
were partially offset by lower domestic sales of
JanSport® and Eastpak® daypacks. Segment Profit
increased 19% in 2002. Profitability improved as 
a lower percentage of products at The North Face
were sold at reduced prices. In addition, costs as
a percent of sales declined at The North Face due
to a sales force reorganization, a change in service
provider for its contracted distribution center and
savings from the combination of administrative
functions with JanSport.

Occupational Apparel: The Occupational Apparel
segment includes VF’s industrial, career and safety
apparel businesses. Sales decreased 8% in 2003.
Unit volume declined 15% related to (1) workforce

reductions in the United States manufacturing
sector that has impacted overall workwear uniform
sales and (2) the ongoing consolidation of our
industrial laundry customers and those customers
placing greater reliance on their in-house manufac-
turing and product sourcing. Partially offsetting 
this unit decline in basic industrial workwear was an
improvement in average price due to growth in our
Bulwark protective apparel business, which has
higher average selling prices per unit.

Segment Sales declined 8% in 2002. Declines
in the basic workwear business, for the two
reasons cited in the prior paragraph, were partially
offset by new uniform programs with major
corporate and governmental customers, particularly
the Transportation Security Administration (TSA).

Segment Profit increased 14% in 2003 and 
72% in 2002 due to cost reduction benefits resulting
from the Strategic Repositioning Program, allowing
for higher margin dollars on a lower sales volume.

All Other: The All Other segment includes VF’s
licensed sportswear and distributor knitwear busi-
nesses. Sales increased 2% in 2003, and Segment
Profit was flat. During 2002, sales increased 11%
and Segment Profit increased 20% over the prior
year. The increase in sales and profits was due to
higher sales of licensed apparel products, in part
related to a new agreement with the National
Football League, offset in part by declines in the
distributor knitwear business.

Reconciliation of Segment Profit to Consolidated

Income before Income Taxes: There are four
types of costs necessary to reconcile total Segment
Profit, as discussed in the preceding paragraphs,
to Consolidated Income from Continuing Operations
before Income Taxes. See Note R to the consolidated
financial statements. The first of these is Corporate
and Other Expenses, which consists of corporate
and similar costs that are not apportioned to the
business segments. These expenses are summarized
as follows and discussed in the paragraphs below:

In millions

Information systems
Less costs apportioned to segments

Application development costs
Headquarter’s costs
Trademark maintenance and enforcement
Other

Corporate and Other Expenses

2002

$ 124.8
(99.8)

25.0
47.6
11.3
19.3

$ 103.2

2001

$ 138.9
(111.4)

27.5
41.4

6.3
(6.2)

$ 69.0

2003

$ 121.6
(98.3)

23.3
47.5
10.3

.7

$ 81.8
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• Interest Expense, Net — Financing costs are
managed in the corporate offices and are not under
the control of business segment management.
Interest expense was discussed in the previous
Consolidated Statements of Income section.

• Amortization of Intangible Assets and Goodwill —
Business unit management has direct respon-
sibility for all operating assets under their control.
Acquisition-related intangible assets are consid-
ered as nonoperating assets. Accordingly, these
assets and their noncash amortization charges
are not considered to be under the control of
business unit management. Excluding these amorti-
zation charges from business unit results provides
better comparability of operating results among
VF’s business units. The expense in 2003 resulted
from amortization of intangible assets from the
acquisitions completed during 2003; see Note F
to the consolidated financial statements. Amounts
in the two preceding years related to amortization
of goodwill in 2001 and to goodwill impairment
charges in both 2002 and 2001; see Notes G
and P to the consolidated financial statements.

• Restructuring Charges, Net — Although restructur-
ing costs result from decisions influenced by
business unit management, these costs are not
charged to the business units for internal manage-
ment reporting because of the unusual nature of
these costs and their effect on comparability of
operating performance among VF’s business units
and between periods. These costs relate to the
2001/2002 Strategic Repositioning Program. See
the discussion in a previous section, Restructuring
Charges and Discontinued Operations, and see
Note P to the consolidated financial statements. 

Dollars in millions

Working capital
Current ratio
Debt to total capital

January 3, 2004

$ 1,336.7
2.5 to 1

33.7%

January 4, 2003

$ 1,199.7
2.4 to 1

28.6%

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

Balance Sheets

Accounts Receivable increased in 2003 due to the
acquisition of Nautica and to the effects of foreign
currency translation on international balances. The
number of days’ sales outstanding declined slightly
in 2003. The allowance for bad debts increased 
due to the acquisition of Nautica.

Inventories increased in 2003 due to the acquisi-
tion of Nautica and to the effects of foreign currency
translation on international balances. Inventory
levels declined significantly during 2001 and 2002
through more efficient sales forecasting and pro-
duction planning techniques. In addition, we have
been planning cautiously in this retail environment.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets
and Goodwill each increased in 2003 due to the
acquisition of Nautica. See Notes B, E, F and G 
to the consolidated financial statements.

Short-term Borrowings, all at international busi-
nesses, were reduced during 2003 by cash provided
from operations. Both Accounts Payable and
Accrued Liabilities increased in 2003 due to the
acquisition of Nautica.

In October 2003, following the acquisition of
Nautica, VF issued $300.0 million principal amount
of 30 year notes. These notes are recorded at year-
end at $292.1 million, net of unamortized original
issue discount. Considering the issue discount,
along with debt issuance costs and a deferred gain
on a related interest rate hedging contract, this
borrowing has an effective annual interest cost of
6.19%. In addition, long-term debt includes $59.0
million representing the discounted value of 
obligations related to the purchase of rights from
Mr. David Chu. See Note J to the consolidated
financial statements.

Other Liabilities increased in 2003 due to 
an increase in pension liabilities; see Note K to 
the consolidated financial statements and the
following paragraph. In addition, Other Liabilities
included increased balances for nonqualified
deferred compensation plans, which resulted in 
a comparable increase in Other Assets for the
amount of VF-owned investment securities held 
in irrevocable trusts to fund those liabilities.

In VF’s defined benefit pension plans, accumu-
lated benefit obligations exceeded the fair value 
of plan assets by $248.6 million at our plans’ latest
September 30 valuation date. At the end of 2003,
VF had a minimum pension liability of $199.2 million
and a related charge of $160.9 million, net of income
taxes, to Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income (Loss). Of the total liability, $55.0 million
was recorded as a current liability based on our
funding plan for 2004 and $144.2 million was
recorded as a long-term liability. This status at 
the end of 2003 compares with a minimum
pension liability of $177.6 million at the end of
2002 (of which $75.0 was classified as a current
liability) and a related charge to Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of 
income taxes, of $128.5 million. The underfunded
status of the plans increased during 2003, despite 
the significant growth in plan assets, because 
the present value of accumulated benefit liabilities
increased by a larger amount as a result of the decline
in the discount rate used to value benefit liabilities.

Liquidity and Cash Flows

The financial condition of VF is reflected in 
the following:
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We have other financial commitments at the end
of 2003 that may require the use of funds under
certain circumstances:

• Shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
have been issued to participants as matching
contributions under the Employee Stock Ownership
Plan. If requested by the trustee of the ESOP, VF
has an obligation to redeem Preferred Stock held
in participant accounts and to pay each partici-
pant the value of their account. The amounts of
these redemptions vary based on the conversion
value of the Preferred Stock. In 2003, no funds

were required as the ESOP trustee elected 
to convert the Preferred Stock of withdrawing
participants into shares of Common Stock.
Payments made for redemption of Preferred
Stock were $5.8 million in 2002 and $2.6 million
in 2001.

• VF has entered into $72.3 million of surety 
bonds and standby letters of credit representing
contingent guarantees of performance under
self-insurance and other programs. These com-
mitments would only be drawn upon if VF were
to fail to meet its claims obligations. 

In millions

Long-term debt 
Operating leases 
Minimum royalty payments 
Purchase obligations*
Other liabilities 

Total 

Thereafter

$ 500.4
97.3

4.2
–

160.0

$ 761.9

Payments Due by Period

2008

$ .9
35.1

4.3
.4

17.0

$ 57.7

2007

$ 34.4
41.1
19.2

1.8
18.8

$ 115.3

2006

$ 34.3
53.0
18.8

4.0
25.5

$ 135.6

2005

$ 401.2
64.7
17.9

9.6
22.2

$ 515.6

2004

$ 1.1
78.3
23.2

557.3
23.4

$ 683.3

Total

$ 972.3 
369.5 

87.6 
573.1
266.9 

$2,269.4 

* The 2004 obligations primarily represent raw material and finished goods purchase obligations in the ordinary course 
of business that are payable upon satisfactory receipt of the inventory by VF.

For the ratio of debt to total capital, debt is
defined as short-term and long-term borrowings,
and total capital is defined as debt plus common
stockholders’ equity. Our ratio of net debt to total
capital, with net debt defined as debt less cash
and equivalents, was 19.6% at the end of 2003.

VF’s primary source of liquidity is its strong cash
flow provided by continuing operations, which was
$543.7 million in 2003, $645.6 million in 2002 and
$600.6 million in 2001. Cash provided by operating
activities in 2003 included approximately $60 million
of cash provided by Nautica for the period after its
acquisition. Cash provided by operating activities
during 2002 and 2001 was at a higher than normal
level due to favorable changes in working capital.
In addition, cash provided by discontinued opera-
tions totaled $69.9 million in 2002 and $81.9 million
in 2001 from liquidation of working capital and, in
2002, from the sale of the Jantzen business and
other assets.

In addition to cash flow from operations, VF is
well positioned to finance its ongoing operations
and meet unusual circumstances that may arise.
During 2003, VF entered into a new $750.0 million
unsecured committed bank facility that expires 
in September 2008. This bank facility supports 
a $750.0 million commercial paper program. Any
issuance of commercial paper would reduce the
amount available under the bank facility. At the
end of 2003, $736.0 million was available for
borrowing under the credit agreement. The differ-
ence of $14.0 million was due to standby letters 
of credit issued under the agreement. Further,
under a registration statement filed in 1994 with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, VF 
has the ability to offer, on a delayed or continuous
basis, up to $300.0 million of additional debt,
equity or other securities.

The principal investing and financing activities 
in 2003 related to acquisitions. We paid cash of
$578.0 million for acquisitions, primarily Nautica,
net of $75.6 million of cash balances in the acquired
companies. The acquisitions were funded on a
near-term basis with existing cash balances, short-
term commercial paper borrowings and $66.0 million
of noninterest-bearing debt. In the four months
following the Nautica acquisition, we borrowed
$292.1 million in the long-term capital markets,

repaid all commercial paper borrowings and 
$14.9 million of debt of the acquired companies,
and ended the year with $514.8 million in cash
and equivalents.

In October 2003, following the acquisition 
of Nautica, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services
affirmed its ‘A minus’ long-term corporate credit
and senior unsecured debt ratings for VF, as well
as its ‘A-2’ commercial paper rating. Standard &
Poor’s ratings outlook is ‘stable.’ Also in October,
Moody’s Investors Service lowered VF’s long-term
debt rating to ‘A3’ from ‘A2’ and short-term debt
rating to ‘Prime-2’ from ‘Prime-1’ and continued
the ratings outlook as ‘negative’. Based on current
conditions, we do not believe that the negative
rating change by Moody’s will have a material impact
on VF’s ability to issue long or short-term debt.
Existing debt agreements do not contain accelera-
tion of maturity clauses based on changes in
credit ratings.

Capital expenditures were $86.6 million in 2003,
compared with $64.5 million and $78.3 million in
2002 and 2001, respectively. Capital expenditures
each year generally relate to maintenance spending
in our worldwide manufacturing and other facili-
ties. We expect that capital spending could reach
$90 million in 2004 and will be funded by cash
flow from operations.

As discussed in the previous section, accumu-
lated benefit obligations in VF’s defined benefit
pension plans exceeded the fair value of plan assets
by $248.6 million at the plans’ latest valuation date.
We believe that retirement benefits are important
for our associates, and accordingly we are committed
to maintaining a well-funded pension plan. Although
VF was not required by applicable law to make any
funding contribution to the qualified pension plan
trust in 2003 and will not be required to do so in
2004, we made cash contributions of $75.0 million
in February 2003 and $55.0 million in January 2004.
These contributions were significantly higher than
our contributions of $20 million in each of the prior
two years. We will continue to monitor the funded
status of the plan and evaluate future funding
levels. VF has adequate liquidity to meet future
funding requirements.

By early 2002, all of the Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock had been allocated to participant

accounts in the 401(k) savings plan. Since then,
VF matching contributions to the savings plan have
been made in cash instead of Preferred Stock.
This change has not had a significant effect on
VF’s liquidity. 

During 2003, VF purchased 1.7 million shares of
its Common Stock in open market transactions at
a cost of $61.4 million (average price of $36.55 per
share) and in 2002 purchased 3.0 million shares at
a cost of $124.6 million (average price of $41.54
per share). Under its current authorization from the
Board of Directors, VF may purchase up to an addi-
tional 5.3 million shares. We suspended the share
repurchase program during the second quarter of
2003 because of the purchase of Nautica. Depending
on business acquisition opportunities that may
arise, we could resume this program during 2004.

Cash dividends totaled $1.01 per common

share in 2003, compared with $.97 in 2002 and
$.93 in 2001. The dividend payout rate was 28%
in 2003 based on income from continuing opera-
tions, compared with payout rates of 30% in 2002
and 49% in 2001. The current indicated annual
dividend rate for 2004 is $1.04 per share.

Management believes that VF’s cash balances
and funds provided by operations, as well as
unused credit lines, additional borrowing capacity
and access to equity markets, taken as a whole,
provide liquidity to meet all of its obligations when
due and flexibility to meet investment opportunities
that may arise. Specifically, we believe VF has
adequate liquidity to repay the $100.0 million and
$300.0 million of long-term debt obligations due 
in June and October 2005, respectively. Following
is a summary of VF’s fixed obligations at the end
of 2003 that will require the use of funds:
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

AND ESTIMATES

We have chosen accounting policies that we
believe are appropriate to accurately and fairly
report VF’s operating results and financial position
in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. We apply these
accounting policies in a consistent manner. Our
significant accounting policies are summarized in
Note A to the consolidated financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements requires
that we make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses, and related disclosures. These
estimates and assumptions are based on historical
and other factors believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. We evaluate these estimates and
assumptions on an ongoing basis and may retain
outside consultants to assist in our evaluation. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

We believe the following accounting policies
involve the most significant management judgments
and estimates used in preparation of our consoli-
dated financial statements or are the most sensitive
to change from outside factors. We have discussed
the application of these critical accounting policies
and estimates with the Audit Committee of our
Board of Directors.

• Inventories — Our inventories are stated at the
lower of cost or market value. We review all of
our inventory each quarter on the basis of indi-
vidual style-size-color stockkeeping units (SKUs)
to identify excess or slow moving products, dis-
continued and to-be-discontinued products, and
off-quality merchandise. This review covers
inventory on hand, as well as current production
or purchase commitments. For those units in
inventory that are so identified, we estimate their
market value based on current realization trends.
This evaluation, performed using a systematic
and consistent methodology, requires forecasts
of future demand, market conditions and selling
prices. If the forecasted selling price is less than
cost, we provide an allowance to reflect the lower
value of that inventory. This methodology recog-
nizes forecasted inventory losses, on an individual

SKU basis, at the time such losses are evident
rather than at the time goods are actually sold.

• Long-lived Assets — Our depreciation policies 
for our property, plant and equipment and our
amortization policies for our definite-lived intangi-
ble assets reflect judgments on the estimated
economic lives of these assets. We review these
assets for possible impairment whenever events
or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of an asset may not be fully recoverable. We
measure recoverability of the carrying value of
these assets by comparison with undiscounted
cash flows expected to be generated by those
assets. These evaluations have not resulted 
in any significant impairment adjustments during
the past three years, except for those made 
in conjunction with restructuring actions taken 
in 2002 and 2001.

In connection with our adoption of FASB
Statement No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets, as of the beginning of 2002, we performed
a review of our goodwill for possible impairment.
The review required that we estimate the fair value
of our business units having goodwill. Fair value
was based on the present value of expected
future cash flows, which required judgment and
estimation about future market conditions, future
sales and profitability, and a discount rate com-
mensurate with the risk inherent in each business
unit. We engaged an independent valuation firm
to assist management in determining the fair value
of these business units. The write-down resulting
from this review was recorded as the cumulative
effect of a change in accounting policy as of the
beginning of 2002.

This Statement also requires us to reevaluate
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets in all
business units at least annually or more frequently
if there is an indication of possible impairment.
We perform this annual review during the fourth
quarter of each year. For 2003, the indicated fair
value of the goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible
assets in the respective business units exceeded
the carrying amount of those assets, and no
further evaluation was necessary. For 2002, we
determined that $2.3 million of goodwill in our
childrenswear business unit was impaired and,
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Risk Management

VF is exposed to a variety of market risks in the
ordinary course of business. We regularly assess
these potential risks and manage our exposures 
to these risks through our operating and financing
activities and, when appropriate, by utilizing natural
hedges and by creating offsetting positions through
the use of derivative financial instruments. We do
not use derivative financial instruments for trading
or speculative purposes. 

We limit the risk of interest rate fluctuations on
net income and cash flows by managing our mix
of fixed and variable interest rate debt. In addition,
we may also use derivative financial instruments to
minimize our interest rate risk. Since our long-term
debt has fixed interest rates, our primary interest
rate exposure relates to changes in interest rates on
short-term borrowings, which averaged $123 million
during 2003. However, any change in interest rates
would also affect interest income earned on VF’s
cash equivalents on deposit. Based on average
amounts of short-term borrowings and of cash on
deposit during 2003, the effect of a hypothetical
1.0% change in interest rates on reported net
income would not be material.

VF has foreign businesses that operate in func-
tional currencies other than the United States dollar
(except in Turkey, where we use the United States
dollar because of the high inflation rate in that
country). Assets and liabilities in these foreign busi-
nesses are subject to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates. Investments in these primarily
European and Latin American businesses are con-
sidered to be long-term investments, and accordingly,
foreign currency translation effects on those net
assets are included in a component of Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) in Common
Stockholders’ Equity. We do not hedge these net
investments and do not hedge the translation of
foreign currency operating results into the United
States dollar.

A growing percentage of the total product needs
to support our domestic and European businesses
are manufactured in our plants in foreign countries
or by foreign contractors. We monitor net foreign
currency market exposures and may in the ordinary
course of business enter into foreign currency
forward exchange contracts to hedge specific
foreign currency transactions or anticipated cash
flows. Use of these financial instruments allows 
us to reduce VF’s overall exposure to exchange
rate movements, since gains and losses on these
contracts will offset the losses and gains on the
transactions being hedged. Our practice is to hedge
a portion of our significant net foreign currency
cash flows, by buying or selling United States
dollar contracts against various currencies, relating
to cross-border inventory purchases and produc-
tion costs, product sales and intercompany royalty
payments anticipated for the following 12 months.

If there were a hypothetical adverse change in
foreign currency exchange rates of 10% relative to
the United States dollar, the expected effect on 
the fair value of the hedging contracts outstanding
at January 3, 2004 would be approximately $19
million. Based on changes in the timing and amount
of foreign currency exchange rate movements,
actual gains and losses could differ.

VF has nonqualified deferred compensation plans
in which liabilities accrued for the plans’ participants
are based on market values of investment funds
that are selected by the participants. The risk of
changes in the market values of the participants’
underlying investment selections is hedged by VF’s
investments in a portfolio of securities, including
variable life insurance contracts, that substantially
mirror the investment selections underlying the
deferred compensation liabilities. These VF-owned
investment securities are held in irrevocable trusts.
Increases and decreases in deferred compensation
liabilities are substantially offset by corresponding
increases and decreases in the market value of VF’s
investments, resulting in a negligible net exposure
to our operating results and financial position. 
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gains and losses. Our recorded pension expense
for continuing operations was $55.7 million in 2003,
compared with $26.2 million in 2002 (including 
a $2.4 million partial plan curtailment charge) and
$15.5 million in 2001 (including an $11.6 million
curtailment charge). The 2003 expense was higher
than the average annual service cost because it
included a significant cost component for amorti-
zation of net unrecognized losses. On the other
hand, the 2001 pension expense was less than
the average annual cost service because expense
in that year included a credit for amortization of
net unrecognized gains.

Our accumulated benefit obligations exceeded
the fair value of plan assets at our most recent
valuation date. Accordingly, we have recorded a
minimum pension liability of $199.2 million. 
The amount of the liability, along with the related
charge to Common Stockholders’ Equity, could
change significantly in future years depending 
on securities market fluctuations affecting actual
earnings of the pension plan assets, interest rates
and the level of VF contributions to the plan. To
improve the funded status of the plan, we made 
a $55.0 million contribution to the plan in January
2004 and a $75.0 million contribution in 2003.

• Restructuring Charges — We have provided
restructuring charges as we have reduced our
manufacturing, marketing and administrative cost
structure and exited underperforming businesses
in 2002 and 2001. We have also recognized lia-
bilities assumed in business acquisitions where it
is our intent to exit certain activities or terminate
certain employees as we integrate the operations
of the acquired company with those of VF. Principal
costs relate to workforce reduction and consolida-
tion and elimination of facilities. Severance and
related charges are accrued based on an estimate
of amounts that will be paid to affected employees.
Asset impairment charges related to the consoli-
dation or closure of manufacturing or distribution

facilities are based on an estimate of expected
sales proceeds for the real estate and equipment.
Plans to exit facilities may result in charges for
lease termination and losses for future lease
payments, net of estimated sublease income.
Losses may also result from termination of
existing contracts.

We reassess the individual accrual requirements
at the end of each reporting period. If circum-
stances change, causing current estimates to differ
from original estimates, adjustments are recorded
in the period of change. Restructuring charges,
and adjustments of those charges, are summa-
rized in Notes B and P to the consolidated
financial statements.

• Income Taxes — VF’s income tax returns are
regularly examined by federal, state and 
foreign tax authorities. These audits may result 
in proposed adjustments. We, in consultation 
with our independent advisers, have reviewed 
all issues raised upon examination and other
possible exposures and have accrued amounts
that reflect our best estimate of the probable
outcome related to these matters. We do not
anticipate any material impact on earnings 
from their ultimate resolution.

We have recorded net deferred income tax
assets related to operating loss carryforwards 
at the amounts of benefits expected to be ulti-
mately realized. An adjustment to income tax
expense would be required in a future period 
if we determine that the amount of deferred 
tax assets to be realized differs from the net
recorded amount.

We have not provided United States income
taxes on a portion of our foreign subsidiaries’
undistributed earnings because we intend to
invest those earnings indefinitely. If we were 
to decide to remit those earnings to the United
States in a future period, our provision for
income taxes could increase in that period.

Dollars in millions

0.50% decrease in discount rate
0.50% increase in discount rate

0.50% decrease in expected investment return
0.50% increase in expected investment return

Pension Expense

$ 14
(13)

3
(3)

PBO

$ 76
(70)

Increase (Decrease) in

accordingly, recorded an impairment charge in
the fourth quarter of 2002.

We recorded the property, plant and equipment
acquired in our 2003 acquisition of Nautica at
the fair value of those assets, most of which had
been acquired within the prior three years. We
recorded Nautica’s intangible assets at their fair
values based on an independent appraisal.

• Pension Obligations — VF sponsors defined
benefit pension plans as a key retirement benefit
for most domestic employees. Since pension
obligations will ultimately be settled far in the
future, determination of annual pension expense 
is subject to assumptions and estimation. 
The principal assumptions are summarized in
Note L to the consolidated financial statements.
We review these assumptions annually and
modify them based on current rates and trends.
Actual results may vary from the actuarial
assumptions used.

One of the critical assumptions used in the
actuarial model is the discount rate. The rate we
use is based on market interest rates for high
quality corporate debt instruments at our annual
September 30 valuation date and is therefore
subject to change each year based on current

market conditions. The discount rate is used to
estimate the present value of our accumulated
and projected benefit obligations at the valuation
date. The 0.75% reduction in the discount rate in
2003 resulted in a higher present value of benefit
obligations at the end of 2003, which in turn leads
to higher pension expense in future years.

Another critical assumption is the expected
long-term rate of return on the plan’s investment
assets. Because the rate of return is a long-term
assumption, it generally does not change each
year. This rate is determined in consultation with
our independent actuary and is based on several
factors, including the plan’s mix of investment
assets, historic market returns on those assets
and current market conditions. We have used 
an 8.75% return assumption in each of the last
three years, which has been less than our actual
compounded annual return over the last 15 years.
Based on a current evaluation of the factors
mentioned above, we will be using an 8.50%
investment return assumption for 2004.

The sensitivity of changes in these valuation
assumptions on our annual pension expense 
and on our plans’ projected benefit obligations
(PBO), all other factors being equal, is illustrated
by the following:

Differences between actual results and actuarial
assumptions are accumulated and amortized over
future periods. During the last three years, actual
results have differed significantly from actuarial
assumptions. Our pension plan liabilities increased
substantially as a result of the decline in the discount
rate over the last three years. Our actual investment
return on pension plan assets was significantly
below the assumed rate in 2001 and 2002 due to
the overall decline in the securities markets, but
actual returns exceeded the assumed rate in 2003.

At our 2003 valuation date, we had $321.4 million
of accumulated net unrecognized losses. These
net unrecognized losses are amortized over periods
of up to ten years.

The cost of pension benefits earned by our
employees (commonly called service cost) has
averaged $18.8 million per year over the last three
years. However, pension expense recognized in
our financial statements has varied significantly
from that average annual service cost due to the
amortization of accumulated net unrecognized
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT ON 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

From time to time, we may make oral or written
statements, including statements in this Annual
Report, that constitute “forward-looking state-
ments” within the meaning of the federal securities
laws. This includes statements concerning plans,
objectives, projections and expectations relating 
to VF’s operations or economic performance, and
assumptions related thereto.

Forward-looking statements are made based 
on our expectations and beliefs concerning future
events impacting VF and therefore involve a
number of risks and uncertainties. We caution 
that forward-looking statements are not guaran-
tees and actual results could differ materially 
from those expressed or implied in the forward-
looking statements.

Important factors that could cause the actual
results of operations or financial condition of 
VF to differ include, but are not limited to, the
overall level of consumer spending for apparel;
changes in trends in the segments of the market
in which VF competes; competitive conditions 
in and financial strength of our customers and of
our suppliers; actions of competitors, customers,
suppliers and service providers that may impact
VF’s business; the availability of new acquisitions
that increase shareholder value; our ability to 
successfully integrate and to achieve sales and
earnings growth from new acquisitions; our ability
to complete planned divestitures; terrorist actions;
and the impact of economic and political factors in
the markets where VF competes, such as recession
or changes in interest rates, currency exchange
rates, price levels, capital market valuations and
other factors over which we have no control. 
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Management of VF Corporation has prepared the accompanying financial statements and is responsible 
for their content. We believe the statements accurately report the financial position and operating results of
the Company, on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles and management’s best
estimates and judgments. Other financial information in this report is consistent with these financial statements.

Management has established an internal control process that we believe reasonably assures 
that assets are safeguarded, information is fairly reported, applicable laws and regulations are complied with
and operations are conducted on an effective and efficient basis. Inherent in all internal control processes are
limitations based on the recognition that the costs of such processes should be related to the benefits to be
derived. The internal control process is routinely challenged by management, independent auditors and
our internal audit staff to ensure that it continues to function effectively. Significant auditor recommendations
have been reviewed and adopted when appropriate.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors meets periodically with the independent and internal
auditors to discuss the scope and findings of audit work performed, the selection and disclosure of
critical accounting policies, the impact of financial reporting matters and the effectiveness of the internal
control process. The independent auditors and internal auditors have full access to the Committee, 
with and without the presence of management, to discuss any appropriate matters.

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of VF Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements
of income, comprehensive income, cash flows and common stockholders’ equity present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of VF Corporation and its subsidiaries at January 3, 2004 and
January 4, 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three fiscal years
in the period ended January 3, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management;
our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note A to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its accounting
policy for goodwill and other intangible assets in 2002.

Greensboro, North Carolina 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP February 11, 2004

Mackey J. McDonald

Chairman, President and 
Chief Executive Officer

Robert K. Shearer

Vice President – Finance 
& Global Processes and 
Chief Financial Officer

Robert A. Cordaro

Vice President – Controller and
Chief Accounting Officer

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
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In thousands, except share amounts

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $65,769 in 2003 and $48,227 in 2002
Inventories
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets
Current assets of discontinued operations

Total current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
Goodwill
Deferred Income Taxes
Other Assets
Noncurrent Assets of Discontinued Operations

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Current liabilities of discontinued operations

Total current liabilities

Long-term Debt
Other Liabilities

Redeemable Preferred Stock

Common Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock, stated value $1; shares authorized, 300,000,000; 

shares outstanding, 108,170,091 in 2003 and 108,525,368 in 2002
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Retained earnings

Total common stockholders’ equity

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

January 3, 2004

$ 514,785
633,863
932,985

90,955
33,347

2,596

2,208,531

591,680
318,634
700,972
117,436
308,299

–

$ 4,245,552

$ 33,948
1,144

315,219
515,630

5,916

871,857

956,383
436,018

29,987

108,170
964,990

(189,455)
1,067,602

1,951,307

$ 4,245,552

January 4, 2003

$ 496,367 
587,859 
830,518 
117,214 

37,299 
5,283 

2,074,540 

566,546 
– 

473,355 
141,375 
244,829 

2,506 

$ 3,503,151 

$ 60,918 
778 

298,456 
502,057 

12,635 

874,844 

602,287 
331,270 

36,902 

108,525 
930,132 
(214,141)
833,332 

1,657,848 

$ 3,503,151 
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In thousands, except per share amounts Fiscal year ended

Net Sales

Costs and Operating Expenses
Cost of goods sold
Marketing, administrative and general expenses
Royalty income and other
Goodwill impairment
Goodwill amortization

Operating Income

Other Income (Expense)
Interest income
Interest expense
Miscellaneous, net

Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes
Income Taxes

Income from Continuing Operations 
Discontinued Operations
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Policy

Net Income (Loss)

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share — Basic
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy
Net income (loss)

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share — Diluted
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy
Net income (loss)

Cash Dividends Per Common Share

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

January 3, 2004

$ 5,207,459 

3,262,375 
1,331,814 

(31,619)
– 
– 

4,562,570 

644,889 

11,456 
(61,368)

3,529 

(46,383)

598,506 
200,573 

397,933 
– 
– 

$ 397,933 

$ 3.67 
– 
– 

3.67 

$ 3.61 
– 
– 

3.61 

$ 1.01 

January 4, 2003

$ 5,083,523 

3,254,008 
1,229,902 

(24,587)
2,276 

– 

4,461,599 

621,924 

7,397 
(71,325)

3,732 

(60,196)

561,728 
197,300 

364,428 
8,283 

(527,254)

$ (154,543)

$ 3.26 
.08 

(4.83)
(1.49)

$ 3.24 
.07 

(4.69)
(1.38)

$ .97 

December 29, 2001

$ 5,220,417 

3,504,233 
1,247,000 

(23,056)
3,963 

33,850 

4,765,990 

454,427 

6,807 
(93,364)

1,515 

(85,042)

369,385 
152,107 

217,278 
(79,448)

– 

$ 137,830 

$ 1.90 
(.71)

– 
1.19 

$ 1.89 
(.69)

–  
1.19 

$ .93 
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In thousands Fiscal year ended

Net Income (Loss)

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Foreign currency translation
Amount arising during year

Less income tax effect

Minimum pension liability adjustment
Amount arising during year

Less income tax effect

Derivative financial instruments
Amount arising during year

Less income tax effect
Reclassification to net income for (gains) losses realized

Less income tax effect

Unrealized gains and losses on marketable securities
Amount arising during year

Less income tax effect
Reclassification to net income for (gains) losses realized

Less income tax effect

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

January 3, 2004

$ 397,933

89,000
(40,157)

(52,691)
20,335

(14,492)
5,536

15,817
(6,042)

13,730
(5,369)
(1,613)

632

$ 422,619

January 4, 2003

$ (154,543)

40,693
(15,252)

(205,080)
78,239

(15,802)
6,168

280
(107)

(3,184)
1,255
2,763
(1,074)

$ (265,644)

December 29, 2001

$ 137,830 

(24,340)
6,317

(2,504)
851

14,161
(5,693)
(7,151)
2,875 

(952)
373

1,502
(604)

$ 122,665

In thousands Fiscal year ended

Operations 
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash provided 

by operating activities of continuing operations:
Discontinued operations
Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy
Restructuring costs
Depreciation
Goodwill amortization and impairment
Other amortization
Provision for doubtful accounts
Pension expense
Deferred income taxes
Other, net
Changes in current assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 
Inventories 
Other current assets
Accounts payable 
Accrued compensation
Accrued restructuring
Other accrued liabilities

Cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations

Investments
Capital expenditures
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Software purchases
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Other, net

Cash used by investing activities of continuing operations

Financing
Decrease in short-term borrowings
Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt
Purchase of Common Stock
Cash dividends paid
Proceeds from issuance of Common Stock
Other, net

Cash provided (used) by financing activities of continuing operations

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Discontinued Operations

Effect of Foreign Currency Rate Changes on Cash

Net Change in Cash and Equivalents 
Cash and Equivalents — Beginning of Year

Cash and Equivalents — End of Year

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

January 3, 2004

$ 397,933 

–
–
–

104,463
–

13,913
11,197

(21,785)
30,961
13,889

47,502
61,596
22,865

(60,636)
(42,823)
(25,392)

(9,979)

543,704 

(86,619)
(578,038)

(12,775)
17,964

(51)

(659,519)

(30,080)
292,110
(16,183)
(61,400)

(111,258)
32,631

(510)

105,310

(1,417)
30,340

18,418
496,367

$ 514,785

January 4, 2003

$ (154,543)

(8,283)
527,254 

26,342
107,398

2,276
14,247
18,490

3,770
70,849
(12,225)

(24,077)
43,253

(135)
54,123
28,697
(44,798)

(7,054)

645,584

(64,503)
(1,342)

(12,141)
25,731

7,675

(44,580)

(16,586)
–

(301,564)
(124,623)
(108,773)

39,753 
(8,290)

(520,083)

69,899
13,498

164,318
332,049

$ 496,367

December 29, 2001

$ 137,830

79,448
–

104,777
125,715

33,850
12,343
28,710
(6,533)

(14,750)
(20,398)

68,912
170,554

(9,411)
(70,422)

3,445 
(40,755)

(2,759)

600,556

(78,320)
(5,057)

(15,904)
9,611
(1,163)

(90,833)

(61,850)
–

(114,302)
(146,592)
(106,864)

44,632
7,193

(377,783)

81,876
(658)

213,158
118,891

$ 332,049
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 3, 2004

NOTE A — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business: VF Corporation (VF) is 
a U.S.-based multinational corporation that designs
and manufactures or sources from independent
contractors a variety of apparel for all ages. VF 
is a consumer apparel company with significant
market shares in jeanswear, sportswear, intimate
apparel and outdoor apparel marketed primarily
under VF-owned brand names. VF is also a
leader in occupational apparel and in daypacks,
backpacks and technical outdoor equipment.

VF markets these products to a broad customer
base of department, discount and specialty stores
throughout the world. VF’s ten largest customers,
all U.S.-based retailers, accounted for 40.7% of
consolidated 2003 sales and 30.7% of total 
receivables at the end of 2003. Considering this
concentration, VF continuously monitors the cred-
itworthiness of its customers and has established
internal policies regarding customer credit limits. 

Basis of Presentation: The financial position,
results of operations and cash flows of two busi-
nesses that were disposed of during 2002 have
been presented as discontinued operations for 
all periods. See Note C.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of VF and
its wholly owned subsidiaries, after elimination of
intercompany transactions and profits. Investments
in two 50%-owned joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting.

Foreign Currency Translation: Financial statements
of most foreign subsidiaries are measured using
the local currency as the functional currency.

Assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign 
currency are translated into U.S. dollars using
exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date,
and income statement elements are translated at
average exchange rates during the year. Translation
gains and losses are reported in Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss). For foreign
subsidiaries that use the U.S. dollar as their 
functional currency, the effects of remeasuring
assets and liabilities into U.S. dollars is included 
in income. Also included in income are net trans-
action gains of $5.3 million in 2003, $3.1 million 
in 2002 and $0.7 million in 2001 arising from
transactions denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of a particular entity.

Cash and Equivalents includes demand deposits
and temporary investments that are readily con-
vertible into cash and have an original maturity of
three months or less. 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
market. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out
(FIFO) method for 66% of total 2003 inventories
and 59% of 2002 inventories. For remaining inven-
tories, cost is determined on the last-in, first-out
(LIFO) method (primarily due to Internal Revenue
Service conformity requirements where LIFO is
used for income tax purposes). The LIFO method
is used for jeanswear, wholesale sportswear 
and occupational apparel inventories located in
the United States and Canada. The value of the 
inventories stated on the LIFO method is not 
significantly different from the value determined
under the FIFO method.
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In thousands

Balance, December 30, 2000
Net income
Cash dividends:

Common Stock
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

Tax benefit from Preferred Stock dividends
Redemption of Preferred Stock
Purchase of treasury shares
Stock compensation plans, net
Common Stock held in trust for 

deferred compensation plans
Foreign currency translation
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Derivative financial instruments
Unrealized gains on investment securities

Balance, December 29, 2001
Net loss
Cash dividends:

Common Stock
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

Tax benefit from Preferred Stock dividends
Redemption of Preferred Stock
Conversion of Preferred Stock
Purchase of treasury shares
Stock compensation plans, net
Common Stock held in trust for

deferred compensation plans
Foreign currency translation
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Derivative financial instruments
Unrealized losses on marketable securities

Balance, January 4, 2003
Net income
Cash dividends:

Common Stock
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

Conversion of Preferred Stock
Purchase of treasury shares
Stock compensation plans, net
Common Stock held in trust for 

deferred compensation plans
Foreign currency translation
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Derivative financial instruments
Unrealized gains on marketable securities

Balance, January 3, 2004

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Common Stock

$ 112,259
-

-
-
-
-

(4,000)
1,694

45
-
-
-
-

109,998
-

-
-
-
-

182
(3,000)
1,345

-
-
-
-
-

108,525
-

-
-

358
(1,680)

943 

24
-
-
-
-

$ 108,170

Additional 
Paid-in Capital

$ 833,441
-

-
-
-
-
-

51,197 

-
-
-
-
-

884,638 
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

45,494 

-
-
-
-
-

930,132
-

-
-
-
-

34,858

-
-
-
-
-

$ 964,990

Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive

Income (Loss)

$ (87,875)
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
(18,023)

(1,653)
4,192 

319 

(103,040)
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
25,441 

(126,841)
(9,461)

(240)

(214,141)
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
48,843

(32,356)
819

7,380

$ (189,455)

Retained Earnings

$ 1,333,988
137,830 

(103,717)
(3,147)

132
(2,571)

(142,592)
(124)

1,401
- 
- 
- 
- 

1,221,200 
(154,543)

(106,018)
(2,755)

12 
(5,780)
3,332 

(121,623)
(381)

(112)
-
-
-
-

833,332
397,933

(109,020)
(2,238)
6,556

(59,720)
(333)

1,092
-
-
-
-

$ 1,067,602
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Long-lived Assets: Property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, ranging from 3 to 10 years for
machinery and equipment and up to 40 years for
buildings. Intangible assets, other than those having
indefinite lives, are amortized over their estimated
useful lives using straight-line or accelerated
methods. The useful lives of property and intangible
assets are reviewed annually.

VF’s policy is to evaluate property and amortiz-
able intangible assets for possible impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of such assets
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would
be recorded if undiscounted future cash flows
were not expected to be adequate to recover the
assets’ carrying value.

Goodwill represents the excess of costs over 
the fair value of net tangible assets and identifiable
intangible assets of businesses acquired. Through
2001, goodwill was amortized using the straight-
line method over 10 to 40 years. Effective at the
beginning of 2002, VF adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Statement No.142,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Under this
Statement, goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are not amortized but must
be tested at least annually at the individual
reporting unit level to determine if a write-down 

in value is required. Other intangible assets 
are amortized over their estimated useful lives. 
The new Statement also required an initial test 
for write-down of existing goodwill and intangible
assets to determine if the existing carrying value
exceeded its fair value at the beginning of 2002.

In adopting the Statement, VF estimated the 
fair value of its individual business reporting units
on a discounted cash flow basis. VF engaged an
independent valuation firm to review the fair value
of its business units and, where there was an indi-
cation that the recorded amount of goodwill might
be greater than its fair value, to assist manage-
ment in determining the amount of the possible
write-down in value. This evaluation indicated that
recorded goodwill exceeded its fair value at several
business units where performance had not met
management’s expectations at the time of their
acquisition. The fair values of the net tangible and
intangible assets of these business units, and 
the related goodwill write-downs, were measured
in accordance with the requirements of this
Statement. The resulting write-downs of goodwill
were primarily attributable to differences between
the fair value approach under this Statement and
the undiscounted cash flow approach used under
previous accounting literature. The amount of
write-down, and the business units accounting 
for the charges, are summarized by reportable
segment as follows (in thousands):

Business Segment

Consumer Apparel

Occupational Apparel

All Other

Amount

$ 232,126

109,543

185,585

Business Unit

European intimate apparel,
children’s apparel and 
Latin American jeanswear

Workwear

Licensed knitwear

Accordingly, VF recorded a noncash charge 
of $527.3 million ($4.69 per diluted share), which
was recognized as the cumulative effect of a
change in accounting policy in the Consolidated
Statement of Income at the beginning of 2002.
There was no income tax effect for this charge.

Also under the new Statement, goodwill amorti-
zation is no longer required. The following presents
adjusted net income and earnings per share for
2001 as if goodwill had not been required to be
amortized in that year (in thousands, except per
share amounts; see table on next page):

Net income, as reported
Add back goodwill amortization, net of income taxes

Adjusted net income

Earnings per share:
Basic – as reported
Add back goodwill amortization, net of income taxes

Basic – as adjusted

Diluted – as reported
Add back goodwill amortization, net of income taxes

Diluted – as adjusted

$ 137,830
33,153

$ 170,983

$ 1.19
.30

$ 1.49

$ 1.19
.30

$ 1.49

Revenue Recognition: Sales to wholesale
customers are recognized when the risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred, which
is when the product is received by the customer.
Allowances for estimated returns and discounts and
for sales incentive programs are recognized as
reductions of sales when the sales are recorded.
Sales incentive programs with retailers include
stated discounts, discounts based on the retailer
informally agreeing to advertise or promote the
products, or margin support funds. Sales incentive
programs directly with consumers include rebate
and coupon offers. All allowances and sales
incentive programs are based on historical customer
claim rates and specific product circumstances.
Sales at retail outlet stores are recognized at the
time of sale to consumers.

Cost of Goods Sold for manufactured goods
includes all materials, labor and overhead costs
incurred in the production process. Cost of Goods
Sold for purchased finished goods includes the
purchase costs and related overhead. In both cases,
overhead includes all costs related to obtaining
the finished goods, including costs of planning,
purchasing and sourcing, quality control, freight
and duties.

Marketing, Administrative and General Expenses

includes marketing and advertising, warehousing,
shipping and handling, administrative and general
expenses. Advertising costs are expensed as
incurred and totaled $258.6 million in 2003,

$244.7 million in 2002 and $220.6 million in 2001.
Advertising costs include cooperative advertising
payments made to VF’s customers as direct reim-
bursement of advertising costs incurred by those
retailers for advertising VF’s products. Cooperative
advertising costs were $42.0 million in 2003,
$40.0 million in 2002 and $33.9 million in 2001.
Warehousing, shipping and handling costs totaled
$234.8 million in 2003, $217.8 million in 2002 
and $232.1 million in 2001.

Royalty Income and Other: Royalty income 
is recognized at rates specified in the licensing 
contracts, based on the licensees’ sales of
licensed products to their customers. Royalty
income is presented net of related expenses of
$7.6 million in 2003, $4.6 million in 2002 and 
$4.7 million in 2001.

Income Taxes are provided for amounts of taxes
payable or refundable in the current year and for
expected future tax consequences of events that
are recognized in financial statements in different
periods than they are recognized in tax returns. 
As a result of timing of recognition and measure-
ment differences between financial accounting
standards and income tax laws, temporary differ-
ences arise between the amounts of pretax
financial statement income and taxable income
and between reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and
their respective tax bases. Net deferred income
tax assets reported in the Consolidated Balance



VF Corporation 2003 Annual Report 75

Sheets reflect estimated future tax effects attribut-
able to the temporary differences and carryforwards,
based on tax rates in effect for the years in which
the differences are expected to reverse. Valuation
allowances are used to reduce deferred tax assets
to amounts considered likely to be realized. U.S.
deferred income taxes are not provided on undis-
tributed income of foreign subsidiaries where such
earnings are considered to be permanently invested.

Stock-based Compensation is accounted for
under the recognition and measurement principles
of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock

Issued to Employees. For stock option grants,
compensation expense is not required, as all

options have an exercise price equal to the market
value of the underlying common stock at the date
of grant. For grants of stock awards, compensation
expense equal to the market value of the shares 
to be issued is recognized over the three year per-
formance period being measured. For restricted
stock grants, compensation expense equal to the
market value of the shares at the date of grant is
recognized over the vesting period. The following
table presents the effects on net income and
earnings per share if VF had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of FASB Statement No.
123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,

to all stock-based employee compensation: 

In thousands, except per share amounts

Net income (loss), as reported
Add employee compensation expense for restricted stock 

grants and stock awards included in reported net income, 
net of income taxes

Less total stock-based employee compensation expense 
determined under the fair value-based method, net of 
income taxes

Pro forma net income (loss)

Earnings (loss) per common share:
Basic – as reported
Basic – pro forma

Diluted – as reported
Diluted – pro forma

2002

$ (154,543)

627

(15,512)

$ (169,428)

$ (1.49)
(1.63)

$ (1.38)
(1.52)

2001

$ 137,830

852

(16,210)

$ 122,472

$ 1.19
1.05

$ 1.19
1.05

2003

$ 397,933

990

(13,648)

$ 385,275

$ 3.67
3.55

$ 3.61
3.49

Details of the stock compensation plan and of 
the fair value assumptions used above for stock
options are described in Note O.

Derivative Financial Instruments are measured at
their fair value and are recognized as Other Current
Assets or Accrued Liabilities in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. VF formally documents hedged
transactions and hedging instruments, and assesses,
both at the inception of the contract and on an
ongoing basis, whether the hedging instruments
are effective in offsetting changes in cash flows 
of the hedged transactions. VF does not use 
derivative financial instruments for trading or 
speculative purposes.

If certain conditions are met, a derivative may
be specifically designated and accounted for as 
(1) a hedge of the exposure to variable cash 
flows for a forecasted transaction or (2) a hedge 
of the exposure to changes in the fair value of 
a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized
firm commitment. The criteria used to determine 
if hedge accounting treatment is appropriate are
(1) to designate and identify the appropriate
hedging instrument to be used to reduce an iden-
tified underlying exposure and (2) to determine if
there is a high correlation between the value of the
hedging instrument and the identified underlying
exposure. Changes in the fair value of derivatives
accounted for as cash flow hedges are deferred in

Other Comprehensive Income and are recognized
in Net Income as an offset to the earnings impact
of the hedged transaction at the time in which 
the hedged transaction affects earnings. Changes
in the fair value of derivatives accounted for as 
fair value hedges are recognized in Miscellaneous
Income as an offset to the earnings impact of 
the underlying hedged item. The changes in fair
value, as evaluated and adjusted each quarter, 
are reported in earnings or deferred in Other
Comprehensive Income, depending on the nature
and effectiveness of the hedged item or the 
underlying risk. Any ineffectiveness in a hedging
relationship is recorded immediately in earnings. 

Fiscal Year: VF uses a 52/53 week fiscal year. Fiscal
year 2003 ended on January 3, 2004 and consisted
of 52 weeks. Fiscal year 2002 consisted of 53
weeks, and fiscal year 2001 consisted of 52 weeks.

Reclassifications: Certain prior year amounts 
have been reclassified to conform with the 
2003 presentation.

Use of Estimates: In preparing financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, management makes estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

NOTE B — ACQUISITIONS 

On August 27, 2003, VF acquired all of the
common stock of Nautica Enterprises, Inc. (Nautica)
for a total cash consideration of $587.6 million.
Nautica designs, sources and markets sportswear
under Nautica® and related brands. The Nautica®

brand is licensed for apparel and accessories in
the United States and many international markets,
and for home furnishings and accessories in the
United States. The Nautica acquisition (1) provides
a growth platform for sportswear, which is a new
product category for VF, (2) provides broader
product capabilities related to a lifestyle brand and
(3) significantly expands VF’s presence in the
department store and specialty store channels of
distribution. The Nautica acquisition also included
a chain of 115 Nautica® retail outlet stores, the
premium Earl Jean® brand of jeans and sportswear
and the John Varvatos® brand of designer sports-
wear, which VF intends to exit (Note C). Operating
results of Nautica have been included in the 
consolidated financial statements since the date 
of acquisition.

In a separate transaction also closing on 
August 27, 2003, VF acquired from Mr. David Chu,
an officer of Nautica, and from David Chu and
Company, Inc., all of their rights to receive 50% 
of Nautica’s net royalty income, along with their
other rights in the Nautica® name, trademarks and
intellectual property owned, held or used by
Nautica. Under this agreement, VF paid Mr. Chu
$38.0 million at closing and will pay $33.0 million
on each of the third and fourth anniversaries of the
closing. The future amounts do not bear interest
and accordingly were recorded at their present
value of $58.3 million. In each of the next five years,
Mr. Chu has the right to receive 31.7% of the
amount by which Nautica’s gross royalty revenues
exceed $34.7 million in any year, with such excess
payments to be recorded as Goodwill. Gross
royalty revenues currently approximate $29 million
per year.

The following table summarizes the estimated
fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed for these two transactions (in thousands).
This purchase price allocation is subject to adjust-
ment over the first half of 2004 as VF management
completes its assessment of possible restructuring
initiatives (see table on next page).
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Cash
Other current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other assets

Total assets acquired

Current liabilities
Long-term debt
Other liabilities, primarily deferred income taxes

Total liabilities assumed

Net assets acquired

Goodwill

Purchase price

$ 75,597
247,675

52,197
319,700

10,954

706,123

172,751
18,092
48,595

239,438

466,685

217,178

$ 683,863

Amounts assigned to intangible assets are
based on an independent appraisal of their fair
values. Management believes that the Nautica

trademarks have an indefinite life. Amortizable
intangible assets totaling $102.3 million consist
principally of $89.5 million of licensing contracts
and $9.7 million of customer relationships, which
were determined to have weighted average useful
lives of 30 years and 24 years, respectively, and
are being amortized using accelerated methods.
Factors that contributed to a purchase price that
resulted in recognition of goodwill included 

(1) Nautica’s profitability, (2) its experienced
workforce, (3) VF’s strategies for growth in sales,
income and cash flows in the Nautica wholesale,
retail and licensing businesses and (4) expected
synergies with existing VF business units. Goodwill
was assigned to the Consumer Apparel business
segment, of which $51.6 million is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

The following unaudited pro forma results of
operations assume that the acquisitions of Nautica
and of the rights from Mr. Chu had occurred at 
the beginning of 2002:

In thousands, except per share amounts

Net sales
Income from continuing operations
Net income (loss)

Earnings (loss) per common share – basic:
Income from continuing operations
Net income (loss)

Earnings (loss) per common share – diluted:
Income from continuing operations
Net income (loss)

2003*

$ 5,620,258
356,696
356,696

$ 3.29
3.29

$ 3.23
3.23

2002

$ 5,758,212
355,879
(163,092)

$ 3.18
(1.57)

$ 3.16
(1.46)

* Pro forma operating results for 2003 include expenses totaling $35.6 million ($0.24 basic and $0.23 diluted EPS) 
for settlement of stock options and other transaction expenses incurred by Nautica related to its acquisition by VF. 
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VF completed two other acquisitions during 2003
for a total consideration of $3.7 million. Included
was the acquisition of a business having rights to
manufacture and market certain apparel products
under license from Harley-Davidson Motor Company
for a purchase price of $3.1 million. Contingent
consideration of up to $1.3 million is payable if
certain sales targets are achieved over each of 
the years through 2006. For 2003, $0.3 million 
of contingent consideration was earned and 

capitalized as an additional licensing intangible
asset. Pro forma operating results for prior periods 
are not presented due to immateriality. 

VF accrued various restructuring charges in
connection with these acquisitions. The charges
relate to severance and lease termination costs.
Remaining cash payments related to these actions
will be substantially completed during 2004. 
Activity in the restructuring accruals is summarized
as follows:

In thousands

Accrual for 2003 acquisitions
Cash payments

Balance, January 3, 2004

Lease Termination

$ 13,603
(655)

$ 12,948

Total

$ 20,570
(1,175)

$ 19,395

Facilities Exit Costs

$ 403
–

$ 403

Severance

$ 6,564
(520)

$ 6,044

NOTE C — DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 

AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

As part of the Strategic Repositioning Program 
in the fourth quarter of 2001 (Note P), manage-
ment announced a plan to exit the Private Label
knitwear business unit, which was a vertically 
integrated textile business that manufactured 
and marketed fleece and T-shirts to domestic
customers. Management also decided to exit the
Jantzen swimwear business. During that quarter, 
VF recorded a pretax charge of $105.6 million for
disposition of the knitwear business, of which
$33.5 million related to the write-off of intangible
assets, and a pretax charge of $5.8 million for 
disposition of the swimwear business. Jantzen 
had been part of the Consumer Apparel business
segment; Private Label knitwear, All Other segment.

Liquidation of the Private Label knitwear business
began in late 2001 and was substantially completed
during the third quarter of 2002. The Jantzen® trade-
marks and certain other assets of this swimwear
business were sold in March 2002 for $24.0 million,
resulting in a gain of $1.4 million. Liquidation of the
remaining Jantzen inventories and other assets was
substantially completed during the third quarter of
2002. Both the Private Label knitwear and the Jantzen
businesses are accounted for as discontinued oper-
ations in accordance with FASB Statement No.144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-

Lived Assets. Accordingly, the results of operations,
assets, liabilities and cash flows of these businesses
are separately presented as discontinued operations
in the accompanying financial statements.

Summarized operating results for these discon-
tinued businesses are as follows:

In thousands

Net sales

Income (loss) before income taxes, including gain on 
disposal of $1.4 million in 2002 and loss on disposal 
of $111.4 million in 2001

Income taxes (benefit)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations

2002

$ 97,981

$ 13,470
5,187

$ 8,283

2001

$ 298,388

$ (106,584)
(27,136)

$ (79,448)

2003

$ –

$ –
–

$ – 
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Summarized assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations presented separately in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets are as follows:

In thousands

Accounts receivable, net
Other current assets, primarily deferred income taxes

Current assets of discontinued operations

Property, plant and equipment, net
Other assets

Noncurrent assets of discontinued operations

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Current liabilities of discontinued operations

2003

$ 723
1,873

$ 2,596

$ –
–

$ –

$ –
5,916

$ 5,916

2002

$ 2,273
3,010

$ 5,283

$ 2,500
6

$ 2,506

$ 133
12,502

$ 12,635

The children’s playwear business (consisting 
of the Healthtex® and licensed Nike® brands) 
and the John Varvatos® brand business (acquired 
as part of the Nautica acquisition) are held for 
sale and are being actively marketed at the end 
of 2003. These businesses contributed sales of
$148.5 million, $173.2 million and $196.4 million
and operating income (loss) of $(10.8) million,

$(3.4) million and $3.5 million in 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Operating results include a
$2.3 million goodwill impairment charge in 2002
for the playwear business. Both businesses are
part of the Consumer Apparel segment.

Assets and liabilities of these two businesses
included in the respective captions of the Consolidated
Balance Sheets are summarized as follows:

In thousands

Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Property, plant and equipment, net
Other, primarily deferred income taxes

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

2003

$ 12,958
35,082
14,305

7,521

$ 69,866

$ 11,162
7,274

$ 18,436

2002

$ 21,345
38,145
20,037

5,824

$ 85,351

$ 11,295
10,019

$ 21,314

In thousands

Finished products
Work in process
Materials and supplies

2003

$ 714,867
91,593

126,525

$ 932,985

2002

$ 587,954
110,383
132,181

$ 830,518 

NOTE D — INVENTORIES

In thousands

Land
Buildings
Machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

2003

$ 52,124
479,725

1,027,997

1,559,846
968,166

$ 591,680

2002

$ 48,566
462,792

1,027,911

1,539,269
972,723

$ 566,546

NOTE E — PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Dollars in thousands

Amortizable intangible assets:
License agreements
Customer relationships
Other

Total amortized intangible assets, net

Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Nautica trademarks

Total intangible assets, net

Accumulated 
Amortization

$ 1,148
233

2,175

Net Carrying 
Amount

$ 88,352
9,967
2,915

101,234

217,400

$ 318,634

NOTE F — INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Weighted 
Average Life*

30 years
24 years

5 years

Gross Carrying 
Amount

$ 89,500
10,200

5,090

January 3, 2004

* Amortization of license agreements and customer relationships — accelerated methods; other — straight-line method.

In thousands

Balance, December 29, 2001
Change in accounting policy (Note A)
Purchase price adjustments
Impairment loss
Currency translation

Balance, January 4, 2003
2003 acquisitions
Currency translation

Balance, January 3, 2004

Outdoor Apparel 
and Equipment

$ 110,036
–

(924)
–
–

109,112
–
–

$ 109,112

All Other

$ 211,720
(185,585)

–
–
–

26,135
–
–

$ 26,135

NOTE G — GOODWILL 

Consumer 
Apparel

$ 536,636
(232,126)

(275)
(2,276)
6,038

307,997
217,178

10,439

$ 535,614

Occupational
Apparel

$ 139,654
(109,543)

–
–
–

30,111
–
–

$ 30,111

Amortization expense for 2003 was $3.6 million. Estimated amortization expense for the years 
2004 through 2008 is $5.4 million, $5.1 million, $4.9 million, $4.4 million and $4.4 million, respectively.

Total

$ 998,046
(527,254)

(1,199)
(2,276)
6,038

473,355
217,178

10,439

$ 700,972
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A $2.3 million impairment charge for goodwill
related to the children’s apparel reporting unit was
recognized in 2002 based on its forecast of profits

and cash flows, and a $4.0 million impairment
charge was recorded in 2001 for an occupational
apparel reporting unit that was closed.

NOTE H — SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

The weighted average interest rate for short-term
borrowings from foreign banks was 7.0% at the
end of 2003 and 8.0% at the end of 2002.

The Company maintains a $750.0 million
unsecured committed revolving bank credit
agreement that supports up to $750.0 million 
in commercial paper issuance or is otherwise
available for general corporate purposes. This
agreement, which expires in September 2008,
requires VF to pay a facility fee of .09% per year
and contains a financial covenant and other
covenants and events of default. The financial
covenant is that VF’s ratio of consolidated 

indebtedness to consolidated capitalization remain 
below 60%. Other covenants and events of default
include limitations on liens, subsidiary indebtedness
and sales of assets, and a $50.0 million cross-
acceleration event of default. If VF fails in the
performance of any covenant under this agreement
(after giving effect to any applicable grace period),
the banks may terminate their obligation to lend,
and any bank borrowings outstanding under this
agreement may become due and payable. At
January 3, 2004, VF was in compliance with all
covenants, and the entire amount of the credit
agreement was available for borrowing, except 
for $14.0 million of standby letters of credit 
issued under the agreement on behalf of VF.

In thousands

Compensation
Income taxes
Other taxes
Advertising
Insurance
Restructuring costs (Notes B and P)
Minimum pension liability (Note L)
Other

2003

$ 89,856
91,721
32,432
34,742
30,618
22,104
55,000

159,157

$ 515,630

2002

$ 114,132
61,315
28,485
32,516
31,222
28,576
75,000

130,811

$ 502,057

NOTE I — ACCRUED LIABILITIES

In thousands

6.75% notes, due 2005
8.10% notes, due 2005
8.50% notes, due 2010
6.00% notes, due 2033
Other

Less current portion

2003

$ 100,000
300,000
200,000
292,133

65,394

957,527
1,144

$ 956,383 

2002

$ 100,000
300,000
200,000

–
3,065

603,065
778

$ 602,287

NOTE J — LONG-TERM DEBT

The notes contain customary covenants and events
of default, including limitations on liens and sale-
leaseback transactions and a cross-acceleration
event of default. The cross-acceleration is triggered
for all notes if more than $50.0 million of other
debt is in default and has been accelerated by the
lenders, except for the 6.75% notes where the
threshold is $5.0 million. If VF fails in the per-
formance of any covenant under the indenture that
governs the respective notes (after giving effect to
any applicable grace period), the trustee or lenders
may declare the principal due and payable imme-
diately. At January 3, 2004, VF was in compliance
with all covenants.

The 6.00% notes having a principal balance 
of $300.0 million were sold at an original issue
discount of $7.9 million. The discount is being
amortized as Interest Expense over the life of the

issue, and the notes are carried net of the unamor-
tized portion of the discount. These notes have an
effective annual interest cost of 6.19%, including
amortization of the deferred gain on the interest rate
hedging contract (Note U) and debt issuance costs.

Other debt in 2003 includes amounts payable
to Mr. Chu totaling $66.0 million, with $33.0
million payable in each of 2006 and 2007 (Note B). 
These noninterest-bearing installments were
recorded at discounts of 3.25% and 3.84%,
respectively, reflecting VF’s incremental borrowing
rates for those periods. The discounts are being
amortized as Interest Expense over the lives of
these obligations; their carrying value was $59.0
million at January 3, 2004. 

The scheduled payments of long-term debt 
are $401.2 million in 2005, $34.3 million in 2006,
$34.4 million in 2007 and $0.9 million in 2008.

In thousands

Deferred compensation
Minimum pension liability (Note L)
Accrued pension benefits (Note L)
Other

2003

$ 174,771
144,239

49,375
67,633

$ 436,018

2002

$ 141,510
102,643

42,702
44,415

$ 331,270

NOTE K — OTHER LIABILITIES

NOTE L — BENEFIT PLANS

VF sponsors a noncontributory qualified defined
benefit pension plan covering substantially all 
full-time domestic employees. VF also sponsors 
an unfunded supplemental defined benefit pension
plan that provides benefits computed under VF’s

principal benefit plan that exceed payment limita-
tions imposed by income tax regulations. These
defined benefit plans provide pension benefits
based on compensation levels and years of service.
The effect of these plans on income was as follows
(see table on next page):
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The following provides a reconciliation of the changes in fair value of the pension plans’ assets 
and benefit obligations, and their funded status, based on a September 30 valuation date:

Dollars in thousands

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
VF contributions
Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets, end of year

Projected obligations, beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Plan amendment
Partial plan curtailment
Actuarial loss
Benefits paid

Projected obligations, end of year

Funded status, end of year
Unrecognized net actuarial loss
Unrecognized prior service cost

Pension asset, net

2003

$ 519,013
86,290
77,481

(35,061)

647,723

797,173
18,475
53,883

501
–

122,466
(35,061)

957,437

(309,714)
321,375

17,919

$ 29,580

2002

$ 591,831
(63,993)
22,455
(31,280)

519,013

688,569
18,240
51,734

–
(8,404)

78,314
(31,280)

797,173

(278,160)
265,399

20,556

$ 7,795

Dollars in thousands

Amounts included in Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Other Assets
Accrued Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations:
Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase

2003

$ 17,919
(55,000)

(193,614)
260,275

$ 29,580

6.00%
3.75%

2002

$ 20,556
(75,000)

(145,345)
207,584

$ 7,795

6.75%
4.00%

(table continued on next page)

(table continued from previous page)

Differences between actual results and amounts
determined using actuarial assumptions are deferred
and will affect future years’ pension expense. Net
deferred gains and losses totaling less than 10%
of the lower of investment assets or projected
benefit obligations at the beginning of a year are
not amortized. Net deferred gains and losses that
represent 10% to 20% of projected benefit obliga-
tions are amortized over ten years, while those in
excess of 20% of projected benefit obligations are
amortized over five years.

Management’s investment strategy is to invest the
plan’s assets in a diversified portfolio of domestic

and international equity, fixed income and real
estate securities to provide long-term growth in
plan assets. This strategy, the resulting allocation
of plan assets and the selection of independent
investment managers are reviewed periodically. 

The expected return on plan assets was developed
through analysis of historical market returns, current
market conditions and the fund’s past experience for
each asset class. The assumed rate of return on plan
assets of 8.75%, which has been used for over 10
years, is lower than actual long-term historical returns.
The target allocation by asset class, and the actual asset
allocations at the latest valuation dates, are as follows:

Equity securities
Fixed income securities
Real estate

Total

2003

61%
31

8

100%

2002

62%
30

8

100%

Target Allocation

65%
30

5

100%

September 30

VF makes contributions to the plan sufficient
to meet the minimum funding requirements under
applicable laws, plus additional amounts as recom-
mended by VF’s independent actuary. Although 
VF was not required to make a contribution to
the plan during 2004 under applicable regulations, 
VF contributed $55.0 million to its qualified pension
plan in January 2004. Estimated future benefit
payments, including benefits attributable to
estimated future employee service, are approxi-
mately $37 million in 2004, $38 million in 2005, 

$40 million in 2006, $43 million in 2007, $45
million in 2008 and $274 million for the years
2009 through 2013.

For the supplemental defined benefit plan,
VF has purchased life insurance contracts and
marketable securities to support pension benefit
liabilities. The cash value of life insurance and the
market value of other investments that support 
liabilities was $16.7 million in 2003 and $14.8
million in 2002. These securities are held in
irrevocable trusts and are included in Other Assets.

Dollars in thousands

Service cost — benefits earned during the year
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations
Expected return on plan assets
Curtailment charge (Note P)
Amortization of:

Prior service cost
Actuarial (gain) loss

Total pension expense
Amount allocable to discontinued operations

Pension expense — continuing operations

Assumptions used to determine expense:
Discount rate
Expected long-term return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increase

2002

$ 18,240
51,734
(50,433)

2,388

4,243
1,370

27,542
1,317

$ 26,225

7.50%
8.75%
4.00%

2001

$ 19,627 
50,261 
(62,477)
15,971 

6,435 
(9,528)

20,289 
4,784 

$ 15,505 

8.00%
8.75%
4.00%

2003

$ 18,475
53,883

(48,225)
–

3,138
28,425

55,696
–

$ 55,696

6.75%
8.75%
4.00%
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Accumulated benefit obligations earned through
the respective measurement dates for these plans
totaled $896.3 million in 2003 and $739.4 million in
2002. VF has recorded a minimum pension liability
of $199.2 million in 2003 and $177.6 million in 2002
related to the excess of accumulated benefit obliga-
tions over the total fair value of plan assets, prepaid
pension assets and previously accrued pension lia-
bilities. The offset to this minimum pension liability
is recorded as a component of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss). For 2003 and 2002,
$55.0 million and $75.0 million, respectively, of the
minimum pension liability were classified as current
liabilities because VF contributed those amounts to
the pension plan in early 2004 and 2003, respectively.

VF sponsors an Employee Stock Ownership Plan
(ESOP) as part of a 401(k) savings plan covering
most domestic salaried employees. Contributions
made by VF to the 401(k) plan are based on a
specified percentage of employee contributions.

Cash contributions by VF were $5.9 million in 2003,
$6.2 million in 2002 and $7.1 million in 2001. Plan
expense was $5.9 million in 2003, $5.1 million in
2002 and $3.8 million in 2001.

VF also sponsors other savings and retirement
plans for certain domestic and foreign employees.
Expense for these plans totaled $6.5 million in
2003, $7.1 million in 2002 and $5.9 million in 2001.

VF participates in multiemployer retirement 
benefit plans for certain of its union employees.
Contributions are made to these plans in amounts
provided by the collective bargaining agreements
and totaled $0.2 million in 2003, $0.6 million in
2002 and $0.8 million in 2001. If VF were to decide
to exit a market, it may be required to pay a
potential withdrawal liability if the respective plans
were underfunded at the time of withdrawal. During
2003, VF recognized a $7.7 million expense when 
it was determined that a probable withdrawal liability
existed due to recent reductions in employment.

NOTE M — CAPITAL 

Common Stock outstanding is net of shares 
held in treasury, and in substance retired. There
were 1,297,953 treasury shares at the end of
2003, after retirement of 32,000,000 shares during
the year. There were 32,233,996 treasury shares
at the end of 2002 and 29,141,452 at the end
of 2001. The excess of the cost of treasury shares
acquired over the $1 per share stated value of
Common Stock is charged to Retained Earnings.
In addition, 242,443 shares of VF Common Stock
at the end of 2003, 266,146 shares at the end 
of 2002 and 266,203 shares at the end of 2001
were held in trust for deferred compensation plans.
These additional shares are treated for financial
reporting purposes as treasury shares at a cost 
of $8.4 million, $9.3 million and $9.2 million at 
the end of 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Preferred Stock consists of 25,000,000 authorized
shares at $1 par value.

Series A Preferred Stock: As of January 3, 2004,
2,000,000 shares are designated as Series A
Preferred Stock, of which none has been issued.

Each outstanding share of Common Stock has
one Series A Preferred Stock purchase right
attached. The rights become exercisable ten days
after an outside party acquires, or makes an offer
for, 15% or more of the Common Stock. Once
exercisable, each right will entitle its holder to buy
1/100 share of Series A Preferred Stock for $175.
If VF is involved in a merger or other business
combination or an outside party acquires 15% 
or more of the Common Stock, each right will 
be modified to entitle its holder (other than the
acquirer) to purchase common stock of the
acquiring company or, in certain circumstances, 
VF Common Stock having a market value of twice
the exercise price of the right. In some circum-
stances, rights other than those held by an
acquirer may be exchanged for one share of VF
Common Stock. The rights, which expire in
January 2008, may be redeemed at $0.01 per
right prior to their becoming exercisable.

Series B Preferred Stock: As of January 3, 2004,
2,105,263 shares are designated as 6.75% Series
B Convertible Preferred Stock, which were purchased
by the ESOP in 1990. (See Note N.) Changes in our
Preferred Stock outstanding are summarized as follows:

Balance, beginning of year
Conversion to Common Stock
Redemption of Preferred Stock

Balance, end of year

2002

1,477,930 
(113,527)
(169,204)

1,195,199 

2001

1,570,301
–

(92,371)

1,477,930

2003

1,195,199
(223,949)

–

971,250 

Each share of Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock has a redemption value and liquidation value
of $30.88 plus cumulative accrued dividends, is
convertible into 1.6 shares of Common Stock and
is entitled to two votes per share along with the
Common Stock. Dividends are accrued and paid
in cash each quarter. The trustee for the ESOP
may convert the preferred shares to Common
Stock at any time or may cause VF to redeem 
the preferred shares under certain circumstances. 
The Series B Convertible Preferred Stock also has
preference in liquidation over all other stock issues.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income:

Other comprehensive income consists of certain
changes in assets and liabilities that are not
included in Net Income but are instead reported
under generally accepted accounting principles
within a separate component of Common
Stockholders’ Equity. Items comprising Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets, net of related 
income taxes, are summarized as follows:

In thousands

Foreign currency translation
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Derivative financial instruments
Unrealized gains on marketable securities

2003

$ (31,885)
(160,850)

(4,450)
7,730

$ (189,455)

2002

$ (80,728)
(128,494)

(5,269)
350

$ (214,141)

NOTE N — REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK

The Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (Note M)
was purchased by the ESOP in 1990. The ESOP’s
purchase of the preferred shares was funded by a
loan of $65.0 million from VF; this loan was repaid in
2002. Interest income on this loan was $0.1 million
in 2002 and $0.9 million in 2001. Principal and

interest obligations on the loan were satisfied as
VF made contributions to the savings plan and
dividends were paid on the Preferred Stock. As
principal payments were made on the loan, shares
of Preferred Stock were allocated to participating
employees’ accounts within the ESOP. By the end
of 2002, all shares of Preferred Stock had been
allocated to participating employees’ accounts.

NOTE O — STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

VF may grant nonqualified stock options, stock
awards and restricted stock to officers, key
employees and nonemployee directors under a
stock compensation plan approved by stock-

holders. Stock options are granted at prices not
less than fair market value on the date of grant.
Options become exercisable generally one year
after the date of grant and expire ten years 
after the date of grant. Stock option activity is 
summarized as follows (see table on next page):
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Balance, December 30, 2000
Options granted
Options exercised
Options canceled

Balance, December 29, 2001
Options granted
Options exercised
Options canceled

Balance, January 4, 2003
Options granted
Options exercised
Options canceled

Balance, January 3, 2004

Shares Under 
Options

8,498,891
2,419,090

(1,699,860)
(208,140)

9,009,981
2,453,000

(1,326,026)
(343,265)

9,793,690
2,448,480
(921,710)
(417,850)

10,902,610

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

$ 34.17
35.59
26.41
40.33

35.87
40.90
30.29
41.16

37.70
34.75
29.99
41.70

$ 37.54

Stock options outstanding at January 3, 2004 are summarized as follows:

Range of
Exercise Prices

$ 20 – 25
25 – 30
30 – 35
35 – 40
40 – 45

$ 20 – 45

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

$ 23.96
26.16
34.57
35.78
42.18

$ 37.54

Number Exercisable

88,300
847,100
651,550

1,610,950
4,466,866

7,664,766

Number Outstanding

88,300
847,100

2,967,730
2,005,950
4,993,530

10,902,610 

Weighted Average
Remaining Years
Contractual Life

.9
5.1
6.7
8.2
6.3

6.6

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

$ 23.96
26.16
34.49
35.50
42.33

$ 38.23

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Options to purchase 6,061,240 shares were exer-
cisable at the end of 2002 at a weighted average
exercise price of $36.20; similarly at the end of
2001, there were options to purchase 6,447,041
shares at $36.24. There are 3,225,416 shares
available for future grants of stock options and
stock awards, of which no more than 879,353 
may be grants of restricted stock awards.

VF has granted stock awards to certain key
employees under a long-term incentive compensa-
tion plan. The stock awards entitle the participants
to receive shares of VF Common Stock. Each stock
award has a final value ranging from zero to two
shares of VF Common Stock, with the number of
shares to be earned based on three year stock-
holder return comparisons of VF Common Stock

with a peer group of apparel companies. Shares
earned at the end of each three year performance
period are issued to participants in the following
year, unless they elect to defer receipt of the
shares. VF granted 49,147 stock awards having
grant date fair values per award of $36.10 in 2003;
similarly, 44,143 awards at $39.27 in 2002 and
47,560 awards at $36.45 in 2001. A total of 25,064
and 57,188 shares of VF Common Stock were
earned for the three year performance periods
ended in 2003 and 2002, respectively; no shares
were earned for the performance period ended in
2001. At the end of 2003, there are 45,335 stock
awards outstanding for the performance period
ending in 2004 and 50,474 for the performance
period ending in 2005, including dividend equivalents.

A total of 90,792 shares of Common Stock are
issuable in future years to participants who have
elected to defer receipt of their shares earned. VF
also has outstanding 61,283 shares of restricted
stock that vest in 2005, which had been granted
to key employees in prior years. This total included
dividends payable in additional restricted shares of
1,579, 1,425 and 1,495 shares accrued in 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively, on prior years’ restricted
share grants.

Compensation expense recognized in the
Consolidated Statements of Income for stock
awards and restricted stock totaled $1.6 million 

in 2003, $1.0 million in 2002 and $1.4 million in
2001. Since all stock options are granted at market
value, compensation expense is not required. Note
A presents pro forma net income and earnings per
share that would have resulted if compensation
had been recorded based on the fair value method
for all stock-based compensation. Fair value in
Note A for stock options was estimated using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The resulting
weighed average fair value of stock options granted
during 2003 was $8.33 per share, during 2002
was $10.51 per share and during 2001 was $10.78
per share, based on the following assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate
Expected dividend yield
Expected volatility
Expected life (years)

2002

4.0%
2.7%
36%

4

2001

4.9%
2.0%
37%

4

2003

2.6%
2.9%
36%

4

NOTE P — RESTRUCTURING COSTS

During the fourth quarter of 2001, management
initiated a Strategic Repositioning Program that
represented a series of actions to reduce VF’s
overall cost structure. Major initiatives under the
Program included closing higher cost manufacturing
plants, consolidating distribution centers and
reducing administrative functions. (This Program
also covered the exit of the two businesses now
being accounted for as discontinued operations,
as discussed in Note C. Amounts discussed
herein relate to continuing operations only.) Most
of these actions took place in the fourth quarter 
of 2001, with some remaining actions carried 
out during 2002. VF recorded pretax charges 
for these actions of $125.4 million in the fourth
quarter of 2001 and $46.0 million during 2002.

The 2001 and 2002 Strategic Repositioning
Program costs related to:

• Closure of manufacturing facilities — $61.1 million

in 2001 and $29.2 million in 2002: VF closed 30
higher cost North American manufacturing
facilities as part of its ongoing strategy to move
toward lower cost, more flexible global sourcing. 

• Consolidation of distribution and administrative

functions — $42.7 million in 2001 and $14.4 million

in 2002: VF closed certain distribution centers and
reduced administrative functions and staffing in the
United States, Europe and Latin America. 

• Exit of underperforming business — $10.0 million 

in 2001: In addition to the two businesses
accounted for as discontinued operations (Note C),
VF closed a specialty workwear apparel business
having sales of $10.2 million in 2001, resulting 
in a write-down of goodwill of $4.0 million. 

• Pension plan curtailment losses — $11.6 million 

in 2001 and $2.4 million in 2002: Personnel
reductions resulted in curtailment losses in 
VF’s domestic pension plans.

Of the total Program costs in 2002 and 2001,
$75.4 million related to personnel reductions,
including severance and related benefits. 
These actions affected approximately 13,600 
of VF’s employees. 

Activity in the 2001 and 2002 restructuring
accruals is summarized as follows (see table 
on next page):
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In thousands

Restructuring costs in 2001
Noncash charges:

Inventories
Goodwill
Pension plan partial curtailment
Other

Cash payments

Balance, December 29, 2001

Restructuring costs in 2002
Noncash charges:

Pension plan partial curtailment
Other

Cash payments
Reduction of accrual

Balance, January 4, 2003

Cash payments
Reduction of accrual

Balance, January 3, 2004

Other Asset
Write-downs

$ 27,711 

(11,254)
(3,963)

(11,631)
(863)

–

–

2,388

(2,388)
–
–
–

–

–
–

$ –

Lease & Contract
Termination

$ 9,432

–
–
–
–
–

9,432

1,353

–
–

(4,845)
(1,287)

4,653

(3,185)
(376)

$ 1,092

Severance

$ 60,099

–
–
–
–

(7,619)

52,480

20,404

–
–

(44,708)
(5,135)

23,041

(20,275)
(955)

$ 1,811

Facilities Exit
Costs

$ 28,123 

–
–
–

(23,147)
(35)

4,941

21,867

–
(21,228)

(3,698)
(1,000)

882

(438)
(163)

$ 281

Total

$ 125,365 

(11,254)
(3,963)

(11,631)
(24,010)

(7,654)

66,853

46,012

(2,388)
(21,228)
(53,251)

(7,422)

28,576

(23,898)
(1,494)

$ 3,184

The reduction in restructuring liabilities during
2002 related primarily to reduced severance, as
employees at several plants worked longer than
originally planned. In addition, there were $2.8
million of reductions in noncash allowances due
primarily to a decision to continue to occupy a
leased administrative facility. These reductions in
accruals and allowances were credited to income

during 2002. Finally in 2002, VF recorded gains 
of $4.9 million on disposal of closed plants related
to the restructuring actions. During 2001, there
was a $10.9 million reduction in the prior year’s
restructuring accrual due primarily to favorable
settlement of a contract.

Net restructuring costs were recorded as follows:

In thousands

Cost of goods sold
Marketing, administrative and general expenses
Goodwill impairment

2002

$ 17,848
8,494

–

$ 26,342

2001

$ 63,743
46,712

3,963

$ 114,418

2003

$ –
(1,494)

–

$ (1,494)

NOTE Q — INCOME TAXES

The provision for Income Taxes is computed based on the following amounts of Income from 
Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes and Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Policy:

In thousands

Domestic
Foreign

2002

$ 439,744
121,984

$ 561,728

2001

$ 322,375
47,010

$ 369,385 

2003

$ 459,507
138,999

$ 598,506 

The provision for Income Taxes for continuing operations consists of:

In thousands

Current:
Federal
Foreign
State

Deferred, primarily federal

2002

$ 95,738 
28,935 

1,778 

126,451 
70,849 

$ 197,300 

2001

$ 137,927 
18,628 
10,302 

166,857 
(14,750)

$ 152,107 

2003

$ 132,160
29,912

7,540

169,612
30,961

$ 200,573 

The reasons for the difference between income taxes computed by applying the statutory federal income 
tax rate for continuing operations and income tax expense in the financial statements are as follows:

In thousands

Tax at federal statutory rate
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit
Amortization of goodwill
Foreign operating losses with no current benefit
Foreign rate differences
Change in valuation allowance
Other, net

2002

$ 196,605
9,918 

– 
7,531 

(16,989)
(6,115)
6,350

$ 197,300

2001

$ 129,286
(1,424)
8,535

17,253
(3,770)
(2,820)
5,047

$ 152,107

2003

$ 209,477
7,459

– 
2,476

(9,674)
(3,068)
(6,097)

$ 200,573
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As of the end of 2003, VF has not provided
deferred U.S. income taxes on $186.0 million of
undistributed earnings of international subsidiaries
where such earnings are considered to be perma-
nently invested. Such undistributed earnings 
would become taxable in the United States if it
becomes advantageous for business, tax or foreign
exchange reasons to remit any excess foreign
cash balances to the United States. VF has under-
taken initiatives resulting in income in one of VF’s
foreign subsidiaries being taxed at a reduced
effective rate. The income tax benefit from this tax
status was $10.8 million ($.10 per diluted share) 
in 2003 and $13.3 million ($.12 per diluted share) 

in 2002. The tax status providing this benefit 
is scheduled to expire in 2010.

VF has $191.1 million of foreign operating 
loss carryforwards expiring $8.4 million in 2004,
$7.9 million in 2005, $17.4 million in 2006 and
$7.4 million in 2007 and $0.9 million in 2008, with
the remainder having an unlimited carryforward
life. A valuation allowance has been provided
where it is more likely than not that the deferred
tax assets relating to those loss carryforwards 
will not be realized. Interest income in 2003
included $5.7 million related to settlement of 
federal income tax issues.

NOTE R — BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

VF manages its businesses through separate
marketing companies that support specific brands.
Manufacturing and product sourcing needs are met
by groups that support individual or in some cases
several different product types. These operations
have been aggregated into four reportable segments.
The Consumer Apparel segment includes jeanswear
and related products, sportswear, women’s intimate
apparel and children’s apparel, all having similar char-
acteristics of economic performance, product type,
production process, method of distribution and class
of customer. The Outdoor Apparel and Equipment
segment consists of VF’s outerwear and adventure
apparel, plus daypacks and technical equipment,
and is therefore distinguished from the other
segments by type of products. The Occupational
Apparel segment is distinguished from the other
segments because of a different class of customer.
The All Other segment consists primarily of VF’s
licensed sports apparel and distributor knitwear
operations. The operations of Nautica, acquired 
in August 2003, are part of the Consumer Apparel
business segment, except that its golf apparel
product line is part of the All Other segment.

Management at each of the operating business
units has direct control over and responsibility for
their business unit’s sales, operating income and
assets, hereinafter termed Segment Sales, Segment
Profit and Segment Assets, respectively. VF manage-
ment evaluates operating performance and makes
decisions based on each business unit’s Segment
Sales and Segment Profit. Accounting policies
used for internal management reporting at the
individual business units are consistent with those
stated in Note A, except as stated below and
except that inventories are valued on a first-in,

first-out basis. Common costs such as information
processing, retirement benefits and insurance are
allocated to individual business units based on
appropriate metrics such as usage or employment.

Corporate costs other than certain costs directly
related to the business units, net interest expense
and amortization of intangible assets and goodwill
are not controlled by management of the individual
business units and are therefore excluded from the
Segment Profit performance measure used for internal
management reporting. Restructuring charges,
although under the responsibility of business segment
management, are also excluded from Segment Profit
because of the unusual nature of these charges and
their effect on comparability of operating performance.
These items are separately presented in the recon-
ciliation of Segment Profit to Consolidated Income
from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes.

Corporate and Other Expenses (presented sep-
arately in the following table) consists of corporate
headquarters expenses that are not allocated to the
operating business units (including compensation
and benefits of corporate management and staff,
legal and professional fees, and administrative 
and general) and other expenses related to but 
not allocated to the operating business units for
internal management reporting (including develop-
ment costs for management information systems,
costs of maintaining and enforcing VF’s trademarks,
adjustments for the last-in, first-out method of
inventory valuation and consolidating adjustments).

Segment Assets are those used directly in the
operations of each business unit, such as accounts
receivable, inventories and property. Corporate
assets include investments related to retirement
benefit and information systems.

Financial information for VF’s reportable
segments is as follows:

In thousands

Segment sales:
Consumer Apparel
Outdoor Apparel and Equipment
Occupational Apparel
All Other

Consolidated net sales

2002

$ 3,803,790
508,020
491,295
280,418

$ 5,083,523

2001

$ 3,938,282
492,614
535,997
253,524

$ 5,220,417

2003

$ 3,890,028
580,663
450,511
286,257

$ 5,207,459

In thousands

Deferred income tax assets:
Employee benefits
Inventories
Other accrued expenses
Minimum pension liability
Operating loss carryforwards
Discontinued operations
Foreign currency translation

Valuation allowance

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Depreciation
Intangible assets
Other

Deferred income tax liabilities

Net deferred income tax assets

Amounts included in Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Current assets
Other assets
Discontinued operations

2003

$ 41,993
22,280

157,790
99,425
91,720

1,873
26,214

441,295
(67,810)

373,485

39,636
87,538
36,047

163,221

$ 210,264

$ 90,955
117,436

1,873

$ 210,264

2002

$ 31,153
14,686

124,494
79,090
94,742

2,986
48,396

395,547
(69,115)

326,432

33,422
–

31,435

64,857

$ 261,575

$ 117,214
141,375

2,986

$ 261,575

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities consist of the following:

(table continued on next page)
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Information by geographic area is presented below, with sales based on the location of the customer:

In thousands

Net sales:
United States
Foreign, primarily Europe

Total

Property, plant and equipment:
United States
Mexico
Other foreign, primarily Europe

Total 

2002

$ 4,078,385
1,005,138

$ 5,083,523

$ 346,637
125,525

94,384

$ 566,546

2001

$ 4,256,421
963,996

$ 5,220,417

$ 409,688
141,235

91,414

$ 642,337

2003

$ 4,109,540
1,097,919

$ 5,207,459

$ 381,619
109,681
100,380

$ 591,680 

Worldwide sales by product category are as follows:

In thousands

Jeans and related apparel
Intimate apparel
Sportswear
Outdoor products
Occupational apparel
Other apparel

Total

2002

$ 2,788,486
839,786

–
508,020
491,295
455,936

$ 5,083,523

2001

$ 2,873,530
870,846

–
492,614
535,997
447,430

$ 5,220,417

2003

$ 2,666,815
830,225
248,967
580,663
450,511
430,278

$ 5,207,459

Sales to Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., substantially
all in the Consumer Apparel Segment, comprised
16.5% of consolidated sales in 2003, 16.2% in

2002 and 15.1% in 2001. Trade receivables from
this customer totaled $75.4 million at the end of
2003 and $66.8 million at the end of 2002. 

In thousands

Segment profit:
Consumer Apparel
Outdoor Apparel and Equipment
Occupational Apparel
All Other

Total segment profit

Corporate and other expenses
Interest, net
Amortization of intangible assets and goodwill
Restructuring charges, net

Consolidated income from continuing operations 
before income taxes 

Segment assets:
Consumer Apparel
Outdoor Apparel and Equipment
Occupational Apparel
All Other

Total segment assets

Cash and equivalents
Goodwill and intangible assets 
Deferred income taxes
Discontinued operations
Corporate assets

Consolidated assets

Capital expenditures:
Consumer Apparel
Outdoor Apparel and Equipment
Occupational Apparel
All Other
Corporate

Total

Depreciation expense:
Consumer Apparel
Outdoor Apparel and Equipment
Occupational Apparel
All Other
Corporate

Total

2002

$ 589,377
72,697
60,561
34,841

757,476 

(103,202)
(63,928)

(2,276)
(26,342)

$ 561,728

$ 1,464,402
147,990
224,479
130,367

1,967,238

496,367
473,355
258,589

4,803
302,799

$ 3,503,151

$ 41,350
5,318
1,264
4,248

12,323

$ 64,503

$ 70,644
9,545

10,292
6,319

10,598

$ 107,398

2001

$ 547,679
61,099
35,283
29,130

673,191

(68,981)
(86,557)
(33,850)

(114,418)

$ 369,385

$ 1,498,342
134,311
265,634
109,895

2,008,182

332,049
998,046
240,416
145,252
379,071

$4,103,016

$ 59,865
3,278
1,902
3,579
9,696

$ 78,320

$ 79,609
7,183

14,158
7,517

13,285

$ 121,752

2003

$ 532,164
95,895
69,238
34,990

732,287

(81,807)
(49,912)

(3,556)
1,494

$ 598,506

$ 1,599,847 
217,473 
205,247 
152,652 

2,175,219 

514,785 
1,019,606 

208,391 
550 

327,001 

$ 4,245,552 

$ 52,189
6,889
1,247
3,654

22,640

$ 86,619

$ 72,413
3,680

10,816
6,699

10,855

$ 104,463

NOTE S — COMMITMENTS 

VF enters into noncancelable operating leases for
retail stores and other facilities and for equipment.
Leases for real estate typically have initial terms
ranging from 5 to 15 years, some with renewal
options. Leases for equipment typically have initial
terms ranging from 2 to 5 years. Most leases 

have fixed rentals; expense for leases having
increasing rentals per period are recorded on a
straight-line basis over the minimum lease terms.
Certain of the leases contain requirements for
additional payments based on sales volume or for
payments of real estate taxes and other occupancy
costs. Rental expense included in the Consolidated
Statements of Income was as follows:

In thousands

Minimum rent expense
Contingent rent

Rent expense

2002

$ 62,408
381

$ 62,789

2001

$ 63,264
373

$ 63,637

2003

$ 74,367
1,953

$ 76,320

(table continued from previous page)
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Future minimum lease payments are $78.3 million,
$64.7 million, $53.0 million, $41.1 million and
$35.1 million for the years 2004 through 2008,
respectively, and $97.3 million thereafter.

VF enters into licensing agreements that provide
VF rights to market products under trademarks
owned by other parties. Royalties under these
agreements are recognized in Cost of Goods Sold
in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Certain
of these agreements contain provisions for the
payment of minimum royalties on VF’s sales of those
products in future periods. Future minimum royalty
payments, including any required minimum advertis-
ing payments, are $23.2 million, $17.9 million, $18.8
million, $19.2 million, $4.3 million and $4.2 million
for the years 2004 through 2009, respectively. 

VF in the ordinary course of business enters into
purchase commitments for raw materials, sewing
labor and finished products. These agreements,
typically ranging from 2 to 6 months in duration,
require total payments of $507.3 million in 2004. 
VF also enters into advertising commitments and

service and maintenance agreements for its
management information systems. Future minimum
payments under these agreements are $50.0 million,
$9.6 million, $4.0 million, $1.8 million and $0.4
million for the years 2004 through 2008, respectively.

The trustee of the Employee Stock Ownership
Plan may require VF to redeem Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock held in participant accounts, and
to pay each participant the value of their account,
upon retirement or withdrawal from the ESOP. 
The amounts of these redemptions vary based on
the conversion value of the Preferred Stock. Since
2002, no redemption payments have been required
as the ESOP trustee has converted shares of Series
B Convertible Preferred Stock for withdrawing 
participants into shares of Common Stock.

VF has entered into $72.3 million of surety
bonds and standby letters of credit representing
contingent guarantees of performance under self-
insurance and other programs. These commitments
would only be drawn upon if VF were to fail to
meet its claims obligations.

In thousands, except per share amounts

Basic earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations
Less Preferred Stock dividends and redemption premium

Income available for Common Stock

Weighted average Common Stock outstanding

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations

Diluted earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations
Increased ESOP expense if Preferred Stock were converted 

to Common Stock

Income available for Common Stock and dilutive securities

Weighted average Common Stock outstanding
Effect of dilutive securities:

Preferred Stock
Stock options and other

Weighted average Common Stock and equivalents outstanding

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

2002

$ 364,428
8,523

$ 355,905

109,167

$ 3.26

$ 364,428

652

$ 363,776

109,167

2,103
1,066

112,336

$ 3.24

2001

$ 217,278
5,587

$ 211,691

111,294

$ 1.90

$ 217,278

826

$ 216,452

111,294

2,417
1,053

114,764

$ 1.89

NOTE T — EARNINGS PER SHARE

Outstanding options to purchase 5.0 million
shares of Common Stock have been excluded
from the computation of diluted earnings per share
in 2003, 5.6 million shares in 2002 and 4.9 million
shares in 2001 because the option exercise prices
were greater than the average market price of

the Common Stock. Earnings per share for
Discontinued Operations, for the Cumulative 
Effect of Change in Accounting Policy and 
for Net Income (Loss) are computed using the 
same weighted average shares described above.

NOTE U — FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amount and fair value of financial instrument assets (liabilities) are as follows:

In thousands

Long-term debt
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

Carrying Amount

$ (603,065)
(36,902)

Fair Value

$ (695,395)
(73,334)

Carrying Amount

$ (957,527)
(29,987)

Fair Value

$ (1,038,544)
(66,169)

2003 2002

2003

$ 397,933
2,238

$ 395,695

107,713

$ 3.67

$ 397,933

–

$ 397,933

107,713

1,674
936

110,323

$ 3.61

The fair value of VF’s long-term debt was estimated
based on quoted market prices or values of com-
parable borrowings. The fair value of the Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock was based on a
valuation by an independent financial consulting
firm. The carrying amounts of cash and equiva-
lents, accounts receivable, marketable securities
held in irrevocable trusts for deferred compensa-
tion plans, short-term borrowings and foreign
currency exchange contracts approximates
their fair value.

VF monitors net foreign currency exposures and
may in the ordinary course of business enter into
foreign currency forward exchange contracts with
major financial institutions. These contracts hedge
against the effects of exchange rate fluctuations
on anticipated cash flows relating to a portion of
VF’s significant foreign currency cash flows for
inventory purchases and production costs, product
sales and intercompany royalty payments antici-

pated for the following 12 months. Other contracts
hedge against the effects of exchange rate fluctu-
ation on specific foreign currency transactions,
primarily intercompany financing arrangements.
Use of hedging contracts allows VF to reduce its
overall exposure to exchange rate movements
since gains and losses on these contracts will offset
losses and gains on the transactions being hedged.

VF may also enter into derivative financial
instrument contracts to hedge interest rate risks.
VF entered into a contract to hedge the interest rate
risk for a notional amount of $150.0 million shortly
before the issuance of $300.0 million of long-term
debt in 2003 (Note J). This contract was settled
concurrent with the issuance of the debt, with the
gain of $3.5 million deferred in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income.

The following summarizes, by major currency,
the net U.S. dollar equivalent amount of VF’s
foreign currency forward exchange contracts:
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VF recognized net pretax losses of $15.8 million
during 2003 and $0.3 million during 2002 and net
pretax gains of $7.2 million during 2001, primarily
in Cost of Goods Sold, for foreign currency hedging
contracts that had matured. As of January 3, 2004,
net pretax losses of $10.7 million were deferred in
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income; these
net deferred losses are expected to be reclassified
into earnings during 2004 at the time the under-
lying hedged transactions are realized. During the

years 2003, 2002 and 2001, hedge ineffectiveness
was not significant.

In addition, as a result of the interest rate
hedging contract mentioned above, VF recognized
a pretax gain of less than $0.1 million during 2003
as a reduction of Interest Expense. As of January
3, 2004, a pretax gain of $3.5 million was deferred
in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income,
which will be reclassified into earnings over the 
30 year term of the notes issued in 2003.

In thousands

Income taxes paid
Interest paid
Noncash transactions:

Notes issued in acquisition
Debt assumed in acquisition
Conversion of Convertible Preferred Stock to Common Stock
Issuance of Common Stock for compensation plans

2002

$ 132,645
72,182

–
–

3,514
973

2001

$ 132,476
95,201

–
–
–

381

2003

$ 128,770
56,148

58,300
18,758

6,914
1,004

NOTE V — SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

In thousands

European euro
Mexican peso
Canadian dollar
Other

Notional Value –
Bought (Sold)

$ (60,028)
64,202
(11,014)
(16,878)

Fair Value –
Asset (Liability)

$ (3,323)
(2,534)

(17)
8

$ (5,866)

Notional Value–
Bought (Sold)

$ (73,439)
69,762

(25,980)
(11,928)

Fair Value –
Asset (Liability)

$ (8,189)
208

(1,302)
–

$ (9,283)

2003 2002
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QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

In thousands, except per share amounts

2003 
Net sales 
Gross profit 
Income from continuing operations 
Net income 

Earnings per share 
from continuing operations: 
Basic 
Diluted 

Dividends per common share 

2002
Net sales 
Gross profit 
Income from continuing operations 
Net income (loss) 

Earnings per share 
from continuing operations:
Basic 
Diluted 

Dividends per common share 

2001 
Net sales 
Gross profit 
Income from continuing operations 
Net income (loss) 

Earnings (loss) per share 
from continuing operations: 
Basic 
Diluted 

Dividends per common share 

Third Quarter

$ 1,435,403
537,078
125,289
125,289

$ 1.16
1.14

$ .25

$ 1,400,389
529,272
128,564
128,249

$ 1.16
1.15

$ .24

$ 1,406,659
493,018
103,209
103,560

$ .92
.90

$ .23

Fourth Quarter

$ 1,387,259
518,512
105,633
105,633

$ .97
.96

$ .26

$ 1,310,616
437,169

70,337*
76,600*

$ .64*
.63*

$ .25

$ 1,233,726
331,203
(32,669)**

(112,597)**

$ (.31)**
(.31)**

$ .24 

First Quarter

$ 1,250,055
468,763

92,066
92,066

$ .84
.83

$ .25

$ 1,212,262
427,894

77,047
(448,258)

$ .67
.67

$ .24

$ 1,340,388
459,903

75,609
77,486

$ .66
.65

$ .23

Second Quarter

$ 1,134,742
420,731

74,945
74,945

$ .69
.68

$ .25

$ 1,160,256
435,180

88,480
88,866

$ .79
.79

$ .24

$ 1,239,644
432,060

71,129
69,381

$ .63
.62

$ .23

Full Year

$ 5,207,459
1,945,084

397,933
397,933

$ 3.67
3.61

$ 1.01

$ 5,083,523
1,829,515

364,428
(154,543)

$ 3.26
3.24

$ .97

$ 5,220,417
1,716,184

217,278
137,830

$ 1.90
1.89

$ .93

* In the fourth quarter of 2002, restructuring charges reduced net income by $14.0 million ($.13 per diluted share). 
See Note P to the consolidated financial statements.

** In the fourth quarter of 2001, restructuring charges reduced net income by $88.7 million ($.80 per diluted share). 
See Note P to the consolidated financial statements.
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2003

$ 5,207,459
644,889
397,933

–
–

397,933

$ 3.67
–
–

3.67

$ 3.61
–
–

3.61
1.01

107,713

$ 1,336,674
2.5

$ 4,245,552
956,383

29,987
1,951,307

33.7%

12.4%
16.6%
22.3%
10.5%

$ 543,704 
61,400 

111,258 

$44.08 – 32.62
18.04 

12.2 – 9.0
28.0%

2002 (6)

$ 5,083,523
621,924
364,428

8,283
(527,254)
(154,543)

$ 3.26
.08

(4.83)
(1.49)

$ 3.24
.07

(4.69)
(1.38)

.97
109,167

$ 1,199,696
2.4

$ 3,503,151
602,287

36,902
1,657,848

28.6%

12.2%
16.9%
22.1%
10.4%

$ 645,584
124,623
108,773

$45.64 – 31.50
15.28 

14.1 – 9.7
29.9%

2001(6)

$ 5,220,417
454,427
217,278
(79,448)

–
137,830

$ 1.90
(.71)

–
1.19

$ 1.89
(.69)

–
1.19

.93
111,294

$ 1,217,587
2.5

$ 4,103,016
904,035

45,631
2,112,796

31.7%

8.7%
8.0%
9.8%
5.0%

$ 600,556
146,592
106,864

$42.70 – 28.15
19.21 

22.6 – 14.9
49.2%

2000 (6)

$ 5,403,123 
505,558 
265,951 

1,165 
(6,782)

260,334 

$ 2.29 
.01 
(.06)

2.25 

$ 2.26 
.01 
(.06)

2.21 
.89 

114,075 

$ 1,103,896 
2.1 

$ 4,358,156 
905,036 

48,483 
2,191,813 

34.7%

9.4%
9.6%

12.1%
6.1%

$ 434,381 
105,723 
104,920 

$36.90 – 20.94
19.52 

16.3 – 9.3
39.4%

1999

$ 5,193,747
638,422
359,539

6,703
–

366,242

$ 2.98
.06

–
3.04

$ 2.93
.06

–
2.99

.85
118,538

$ 763,943
1.7

$ 4,026,514
517,834

51,544
2,163,818

30.1%

12.3%
12.9%
17.3%

8.9%
$ 383,759

149,075
104,302

$55.00 – 27.44
18.62 

18.8 – 9.4
29.0%

1998 

$ 5,090,109
670,090
377,078

11,228
–

388,306

$ 3.07
.10

–
3.17

$ 3.01
.09

–
3.10

.81
120,744

$ 815,146
1.8

$ 3,836,666
521,657

54,344
2,066,308

27.1%

13.2%
15.1%
19.7%
10.2%

$ 382,547
147,398
101,660

$54.69 – 33.44
17.30

18.2 – 11.1
26.9%

1997 

$ 4,728,784
555,147
321,279

29,663
–

350,942

$ 2.52
.24

–
2.76

$ 2.47
.23

–
2.70

.77
125,504

$ 835,558
2.1

$ 3,322,782
516,226

56,341
1,866,769

22.5%

11.7%
13.6%
18.2%
10.1%

$ 395,056 
391,651 
100,141 

$48.25 – 32.25
15.40

19.5 – 13.1
31.2%

1996 

$ 4,697,624
511,239
272,370

27,154
–

299,524

$ 2.11
.21

–
2.32

$ 2.07
.21

–
2.28

.73
127,292

$ 940,059
2.2

$ 3,449,535
519,058

58,092
1,973,739

21.4%

10.9%
11.9%
16.2%

8.6%
$ 648,348

61,483
97,036

$34.94 – 23.81
15.44

16.9 – 11.5
35.3%

1995 (6)

$ 4,613,512
316,152
140,082

17,209
–

157,291

$ 1.07
.13

–
1.20

$ 1.06
.13

–
1.19

.69
127,486

$ 799,317
1.9

$ 3,447,071
614,217

60,667
1,771,506

32.3%

6.9%
6.5%
8.8%
4.4%

$ 289,690 
86,251 
92,038 

$28.56 – 23.38
13.96

26.9 – 22.1
65.1%

1994 

$ 4,517,836
516,558
267,118

7,418
–

274,536

$ 2.04
.06

–
2.10

$ 1.99
.06

–
2.05

.65
129,240

$ 638,834
1.7

$ 3,335,608
516,700

62,195
1,734,009

32.7%

11.4%
11.7%
16.8%

7.9%
$ 436,602

27,878
88,223

$26.88 – 22.13
13.51

13.5 – 11.1
32.7%

1993 

$ 3,882,328
415,802
236,241

10,174
–

246,415

$ 1.82
.08

–
1.90

$ 1.78
.07

–
1.85

.61
128,022

$ 840,332
2.3

$ 2,877,348
527,573

63,309
1,547,400

30.3%

10.7%
12.0%
16.9%

8.5%
$ 278,549

–
82,831

$28.25 – 19.75
12.00

15.9 – 11.1
34.3%

In thousands, except per share amounts

Summary of Operations
Net sales
Operating income
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy
Net income (loss)
Earnings (loss) per common share – basic (1)

Income from continuing operations 
Discontinued operations
Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy
Net income (loss)

Earnings (loss) per common share – diluted (1)

Income from continuing operations 
Discontinued operations
Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy
Net income (loss)

Dividends per share
Average number of common shares outstanding

Financial Position
Working capital
Current ratio
Total assets
Long-term debt
Redeemable preferred stock
Common stockholders’ equity
Debt to capital ratio (2)

Other Statistics (4)

Operating margin 
Return on capital (2) (3)

Return on average common stockholders’ equity
Return on average total assets
Cash provided by operations
Purchase of Common Stock
Dividends

Market Data (4)

Market price range (1)

Book value per common share (1)

Price earnings ratio – high-low
Rate of payout (5)

(1) Per share computations and market price ranges have been adjusted to reflect a two-for-one stock split in November 1997.
(2) Capital is defined as average common stockholders’ equity plus short-term and long-term debt.
(3) Return on capital is based on operating income plus miscellaneous income (expense), net of income taxes.
(4) Operating statistics and market data are based on continuing operations.
(5) Dividends per share divided by earnings from continuing operations per diluted share.
(6) Includes restructuring charges as follows: 2002 — $16.4 million ($0.14 per diluted share); 2001 — $88.7 million ($0.77 per share);

2000 — $73.3 million ($0.63 per share); and 1995 — $97.7 million ($0.74 per share).
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Kimberly-Clark Corporation
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New York, New York
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Director since 2000, age 54
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Director since 1993, age 57
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Director since January 2004, age 47

M. Rust Sharp 2,5

Of Counsel
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(Attorneys) 
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Corporate Officers

Mackey J. McDonald

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Joined VF in 1983, age 57

George N. Derhofer

Vice President and Chairman –
Imagewear Coalition
Joined VF in 1989, age 50

Terry L. Lay

Vice President and Chairman – Outdoor 
& International Jeanswear Coalitions
Joined VF in 1974, age 56

John P. Schamberger

Vice President and Chairman –
North & South America Jeanswear Coalition
Joined VF in 1972, age 55

Eric C. Wiseman

Vice President and Chairman –
Sportswear & Global Intimates Coalitions
Joined VF in 1995, age 48

Robert K. Shearer

Vice President – Finance & Global 
Processes and Chief Financial Officer
Joined VF in 1986, age 52

Robert A. Cordaro

Vice President – Controller and 
Chief Accounting Officer
Joined VF in 1985, age 50

Candace S. Cummings

Vice President – Administration, 
General Counsel and Secretary
Joined VF in 1995, age 56

Frank C. Pickard III

Vice President – Treasurer
Joined VF in 1976, age 59

Susan Larson Williams

Vice President – Human Resources
Joined VF in 1983, age 46

Richard Lipinski

Vice President – Corporate Taxes
Joined VF in 1986, age 58

F. Scott Moree

Vice President – Internal Audit
Joined VF in 1994, age 47

David L. Reklau

Financial Controller
Joined VF in 1981, age 57

Linda J. Matthews

Assistant Treasurer
Joined VF in 1981, age 47
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Common Stock 

Listed on the New York Stock Exchange and Pacific Exchange — trading symbol VFC.

Stockholders of Record 

As of February 10, 2004, there were 5,779 stockholders of record.

Dividend Policy 

Quarterly dividends on VF Corporation Common Stock, when declared, are paid on or about 
the 20th day of March, June, September and December.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 

The Plan is offered to stockholders by EquiServe Trust Company, N.A. The Plan provides for automatic
dividend reinvestment and voluntary cash contributions for the purchase of additional shares of VF
Corporation Common Stock. Questions concerning general Plan information should be directed to 
the Office of the Vice President – Administration, General Counsel and Secretary of VF Corporation.

Dividend Direct Deposit 

Stockholders may have their dividends deposited into their savings or checking account at any bank 
that is a member of the Automated Clearing House (ACH) system. A brochure describing this service 
may be obtained by contacting EquiServe.

Quarterly Common Stock Price Information 

The high and low sales prices on a calendar quarter basis for the periods indicated were as follows:

High

$ 44.98 
45.64 
43.07 
39.35 

Low

$ 39.00 
38.20 
33.88 
31.50 

High

$ 36.93 
42.70 
39.95 
41.00 

Low

$ 32.79 
34.21 
28.30 
28.15 

Low

$ 32.62 
33.51
33.43
38.81

High

$ 39.35 
40.17
41.59
44.08

2003 2002 2001

First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

INVESTOR INFORMATION

VF CORPORATION HIGH/LOW STOCK PRICES 
Dollars

1993 19951994 199819971996 20011999 2000 2002 2003

60

50

40

30

20

10

0

VF Corporation 2003 Annual Report

CORPORATE OFFICE

VF World Headquarters
105 Corporate Center Boulevard
Greensboro, North Carolina 27408
Telephone: 336.424.6000
Facsimile: 336.424.7696
Mail Address: P.O. Box 21488
Greensboro, North Carolina 27420

ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders will 
be held on Tuesday, April 27, 2004, at 10:30 AM 
at the O. Henry Hotel, Caldwell Room, 
624 Green Valley Road, 
Greensboro, North Carolina 27408.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Cindy Knoebel, CFA
Vice President, Financial 
and Corporate Communications
VF Services, Inc.
105 Corporate Center Boulevard
Greensboro, North Carolina 27408

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
9th Floor, Suite 4694
525 Washington Boulevard
Jersey City, New Jersey 07310
Shareholder Relations Department: 800.446.2617

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
101 CentrePort Drive
Greensboro, North Carolina 27409

OTHER INFORMATION

VF’s filings with the SEC, including its annual
report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on 
Form 10-Q, press releases on Form 8-K and 
other information, are available and can be
accessed free of charge through the Company’s
website at www.vfc.com.

The following trademarks owned by VF Corporation or its affiliates appear in this report.

Registered trademarks: LEE, WRANGLER, WRANGLER HERO, RIDERS, RUSTLER, TIMBER CREEK BY WRANGLER, BLUE BELL,
WRANGLER RUGGED WEAR, CHIC, GITANO, 20X, BRITTANIA, LEE DUNGAREES, JANSPORT, EASTPAK, THE NORTH FACE, 
LIVE WIRE, AIRLIFT, LEE SPORT, CSA, RED KAP, BULWARK, HORACE SMALL, E. MAGRATH, NAUTICA, EARL JEAN, GEMMA,
HEALTHTEX, CURVATION, LILY OF FRANCE, BESTFORM, VANITY FAIR, VASSARETTE, VALUE IN STYLE, LOU, BOLERO, 
INTIMA CHERRY, BELCOR, VARIANCE, MAJESTIC, H.I.S, MAVERICK, OLD AXE, HERO BY WRANGLER, JOHN VARVATOS.

Trademarks: ONE TRUE FIT, RIGGS WORKWEAR BY WRANGLER, PRO GEAR BY WRANGLER, BUDDY LEE REGISTERED, 
WRANGLER JEANS CO., COPPER COLLECTION, AIRLIFT EXOS, TRANS, WATER TOWER, HYDRO DYNAMIC, ALL TERRA, 
FLIRTY CURVES, EASIFIT, EASICLEAN, A5.

The following trademarks owned by other companies also appear in this report: TOMMY HILFIGER, UFO, CHASE AUTHENTICS,
NFL RED, NFL WHITE, JANTZEN, BYRON NELSON, NIKE
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